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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”), | hereby present the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”).

The Year was a challenging year for the Group. Our business
was adversely affected by the global macroeconomic
uncertainty, social unrest in Hong Kong since June last year
and most importantly, the COVID-19 outbreak which have
impacted the retail and tourism industries. The number of
tourists visiting Hong Kong, and among whom those from
Mainland China, has significantly decreased. The Group’s
turnover for the year decreased by 3.5% to HK$2,353
million (2019: HK$2,437 million). However, gross profit
increased by 7.0% to HK$645 million (2019: HK$603 million)
and gross profit margin improved to around 27.4% (2019:
24.7%), mainly due to the Group’s positioning at the high-
end luxurious watch market where our long-term customers
maintain strong purchasing power, as well as our vigorous
efforts in control on inventory. The Group’s net profit
attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 27.5%
to HK$100 million (2019: net profit of HK$138 million) mainly
as a result of impairment losses made in respect of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment and increase
in allowance of slowing moving watches, and decrease in
revenue caused by the Covid-19 outbreak in the first quarter
of 2020.

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ continuous
support, the Board has resolved to recommend a final
dividend of 8.0 HK cent per share (2019: 8.0 HK cents) and
special final dividend of 5.0 HK cents (2019: 13.5 HK cents)
for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business Review and Prospects

As at 31 March 2020, the Group operated 62 retail and
wholesale points (including associate retail stores) in the
Greater China region. Breakdown by geographic region is as
follows:

Hong Kong F &
Macau S8 Y
China rh
Taiwan o 3
Total =t

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
gross domestic product (“GDP”) has sustained with a 6.1%
year on year growth in 2019, representing a slower growth
rate as compared to the past. With Chinese government’s
measures to stimulate consumption came into effect,
consumer confidence index showed continuous increase
in the fourth quarter of 2019. However, the pandemic,
together with the lock-down measure, posted a huge
impact on China economy. China’s GDP recorded the first-
ever decline of 6.8% in the first quarter of 2020 since 1992.
The purchasing power rebounded in March 2020, which
stimulated the Group’s sales in China. Despite the slower
economic growth in Mainland China, the Group’s revenue in
such market increased by 17.5% to HK$945 million (2019:
804 million) mainly due to the Group’s ability to offer in-
demand watch products to customers, though sales in the
first quarter of 2020 was hit by the Covid-19 outbreak. With
the Covid-19 pandemic more under control, the Group’s
sales in Mainland China has rebound since March 2020.
Profit contribution of our Mainland China operation increased
substantially, which was principally attributable to the
reversal of provision on the inventory made in previous years
and higher profit margin of in-demand watch products.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEBREREEENWR DN

For the Hong Kong market, the Group’s sales for the year
were stable despite the social unrest since June 2019,
but was hit by the Covid-19 outbreak in the first quarter of
2020. Revenue decreased by 17.3% to HK$1,198 million
(2019: HK$1,449 million) for the year, and attributable
profit dropped mainly as a result of impairment losses
made in respect of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment and increase in allowance for slow-moving
watches.

Sales of our shops in Taiwan and Macau grew slightly but
suffered loss mainly due to increase in allowance for slow-
moving watches.

The Group has implemented stringent cost control
measures, in particular, control on rental cost. For the
Year, the Group’s aggregate expenses related to leases
decreased by 15.7% to HK$145 million, accounting for
28.7% of the Group’s overall operating expenses (2019:
36.0%). We have successfully negotiated lower rental
rates and more flexible leasing terms, and hence lowering
the overall rental cost. In addition, we conduct regular
assessment on the performance of all retail stores and close
down non-performing ones to improve resources allocation.
The Group will continue to closely monitor our stores’
performance as well as rental contracts in order to improve
our efficiency and cost structure.

The Group has adopted policies on inventory management
to ensure stable cashflow and healthy financial position.
We monitor the inventory level of high-ticket products and
purchase stocks only when the existing inventory falls to
a pre-determined level. As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s
overall inventory level amounted to HK$799 million, a
decrease of 3.0% from HK$824 million as at 31 March
2019. We have also stepped up efforts in adjusting and
optimising our brand portfolio in order to improve the
Group’s overall sales performance and keep abreast of
market trend. We will continue to take measures to keep
inventory at optimum level, maintain our strong liquidity
position and further develop our business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Looking forward, the China-US trade dispute, the on-
going COVID-19 pandemic, the social unrest of Hong Kong
and the uncertain global economic outlook are expected
to continue to affect the Group’s business. The negative
effect has not been fully reflected in this year’s results. Even
through the COVID-19 pandemic seems to be abating in
Hong Kong, without a readily available vaccine for the virus,
the possibility of a second or third wave attack is still high.
The unknown will continue to place tremendous pressure
on the performance of the Group in the coming periods.
As a watch retailer with long history offering high quality
products, the Group will continue to take prudent strategies
to improve the performance of our outlets, strengthen cost
and inventory management, as well as enrich our product
portfolio in order to enhance the Group’s business in these
difficult situations.

On behalf of the Group, we would like to thank our
customers, suppliers, staff and shareholders for their
contribution, loyalty and unfailing support.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$2,083 million, compared with HK$2,214 million as at 31
March 2019. The Group had net current assets of HK$1,668
million, including bank and cash balances of HK$937
million as at 31 March 2020, compared with balances of
HK$1,886 million and HK$1,085 million respectively as at
31 March 2019. At 31 March 2020, bank loans of the Group
amounted to HK$6 million (31 March 2019: HK$63 million),
and the gearing ratio (defined as total bank borrowing on
total equity) was 0.003 (31 March 2019: 0.03).

Management considers that the financial position of the
Group is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking
facilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, our Group employed approximately
560 employees in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China
and Taiwan, of whom approximately 63% were located in
Mainland China.

Our employees’ compensation packages include basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance and
other common benefits. They are structured by reference
to the nature of their posts, experiences and performance,
and are reviewed annually based on the Group’s objective
performance appraisal system.

The Group has allocated significant resources to provide
training programmes to employees to improve their
services to customers. The management team has used
results of a “Mystery Shoppers Programme” conducted
by an independent consultancy firm to tailor-made training
programmes for specific shop and at individual level.

The Group has also developed a series of training
programmes for senior executives with diverse topics
ranging from leadership, personal development and
effectiveness, task and team management. These
programmes enable our senior executives to improve their
management skills and help to bring in innovative ideas to
the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme relating
to the grant of options to eligible persons including directors
and employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share option scheme enables the Group
to offer valuable incentive to attract and retain quality
personnel and other persons to work to increase the value
of the shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. YEUNG Ming Biu, aged 84, the Chairman of the
Company, is a co-founder of the Group. He has over 60
years’ experience in the watch business and is a Permanent
Honorary Director of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited. He holds Honorary Fellow
awarded by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Honorary Doctor degree awarded by Lansbridge University
of New Brunswick of Canada.

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 51, joined the Group
in 1993. He became Managing Director of the Company
in March 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the
son of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 58, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is a
daughter of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 61, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 33
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Kwok Yum, aged 65, joined the Group in 1969.
He became Director of the Company in April 2003 and
has over 50 years’ experience in the watch business. He
resigned on 1 June 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson, M.B.E., J.P., aged 95,
has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman of
Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is
the Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has
over 60 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of watches, and 32 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131) both of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy, G.B.S., J.P., aged 65, has over
40 years’ experience in the manufacturing business. He is
the President of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Association.
Dr. Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and
a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894) and Chuang’s China Investments Limited
(stock code: 0298), both of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael, aged 64, is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been practising public
accountancy in Hong Kong for over 30 years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Sze Wing, Kenneth, aged 55, is a director of
our PRC companies. He is overseeing the Group’s operation
in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2013 and has over 26
years’ experience in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 60, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 38 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 62, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 40 years’ experience in the
watch business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEEABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standard
of corporate governance as it believes that effective
corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has
accordingly adopted good corporate governance principles
that emphasize a quality board of Directors (the “Board”),
effective risk management and internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to
all stakeholders. It is, in addition, committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical
corporate culture.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
had complied with the code provisions prescribed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviations
explained below in the following relevant paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors (the “Code”). Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors have confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for the year
under review.
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THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term total return for our shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Group’s strategy is to place equal emphasis
on achieving sustainable recurring earning growth and
maintaining the Group’s strong financial profile. Management
Discussion and Analysis contain discussion and analyses of
the Group’s performance and the basis on which the Group
generates or preserves value over the longer term and
the basis on which the Group will execute its strategy for
delivering the Group’s objective.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for long-
term performance of the Company, is responsible for
directing the strategic objectives of the Company and
overseeing the management of the business. Directors
are charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. Yeung Ming Biu,
approves and monitors group-wide strategies and
policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates
the performance of the Company, and supervises the
management of the Company (“Management”). Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Group Managing Director and
Deputy Chairman.
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Board Composition

At 31 March 2020, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including the Chairman, Group Managing Director, Group
Finance Director, two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the Directors and Senior
Management Section on pages 8 to 11. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Role of the Chairman is separate from that of Group
Managing Director and Deputy Chairman. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and
accountability.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing the functions of, the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Group and the
Board meetings are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is responsible for approving the agenda of each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly informed on issues arising at Board meetings
and provided with adequate and accurate information in
a timely manner. The Chairman also actively encourages
Directors to be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and
make contribution to the Board’s functions. The Board,
under the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good
corporate governance practices and procedures and taken
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders.
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The Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman, Mr.
Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is responsible for managing business
of the Group, attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of the Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all Group operations. Acting
as the principal manager of the Group’s business, the
Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman attends to
developing strategic operating plans that reflect the long-
term objectives and priorities established by the Board
and is directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the other Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each
core business divisions, he ensures that the Board is fully
apprised of the funding requirements of the business of
the Group and presents annual budgets to the Board for
consideration and approval. With the assistance of the
Group Finance Director, the Group Managing Director and
Deputy Chairman sees to it that the funding requirements
of the business are met and he closely monitors the
operating and financial results of the business against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action when necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective team to support him in his role.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
over one-third of the Board of Directors. Among the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of them have
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. However, the independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation in annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in accordance
with the Bye-law for the Company. The retiring directors are
eligible for re-election.

The management of the Company considered that there is
no imminent need to revise the letters of appointment of
independent non-executive directors by adding a specific
term in their letters of appointment.

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when
a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circular resolutions
with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by
additional verbal/written information or notification from the
Company Secretary and other executives as when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiary
companies are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever, warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors will receive details of agenda items for
decision and minutes of committee meeting in advance of
each Board meeting. With respect to regular meeting of
the Board, Directors receive written notice of the meeting
at least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.
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Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group
through their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board
and Committee meetings, and through meeting with key
members of the Management.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, meetings and

Directors attendance records for the meetings held are set
out below:

HITEF

Executive Directors

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (7) — Chairman

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (7) BOTEE A (1)

— Group Managing Director — & FE FLEA T
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (7) BEEZ (1)
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain REE B 5T A

- Group Finance Director —EFBFES
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum FEEQKELE
Independent Non-Executive Directors & IF#77E %
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson BRREEH L
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy F=HEELT
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael UM A&

Note:

(1) Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to Directors to help ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and as director of the Company. In addition, Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Lam
Hing Lun, Alain attend external forums or brief sessions
(including delivery speeches by Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain) on
the relevant tropics. Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael has also
participated in CPD programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors have provided to the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors and Board
Committees comprehensive Board agendas and papers.
Minutes of all Board meetings and Board Committees are
prepared by and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All the minutes are sent to Directors and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. The Company Secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations of the Listing Rules including publications
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcement and information relating to the Group and
assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual report of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings
in the Group’s securities, connected transactions and
price-sensitive information and ensures that the standard
and disclosure required by the Listing Rules are observed
and where required, reflected in the annual report of the
Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Whist the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and the Group
Managing Director, all members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Lam
Hing Lun, Alain has appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 1992 and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group affairs.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
and the Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner of the year end and the half year.

The following statement, which set out the responsibilities of
the Directors in relation to the financial statements, should
be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the
Auditor’s report on pages 77 to 82 which acknowledge the
reporting responsibilities of the Group’s Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and

to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparation the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board is satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and its effectives of the audit and has resolved to
recommend their reappointment as the Company’s external
auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to Deloitte were as follows:

RIFLBEEERER  ESR/AKEESR
RWBEBREARAREELE - SRAR
BREAMBBUBHRREBRE -

BB &

Examnsty e MEmS GstaT([12
HEMEMBBMZZHEER - EtBiE
REBRE - YFREZNEERRBS
RE LBERERERRRZINEZEED

RAMBFRER - BB RS KAE
Mz BEMEIT

HK$’000

FET

Audit BT RS 3,480
Taxation and non-audit services % N IEE AT RS 448
3,928
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experience and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, and Mr. Choi Man Chau as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditors, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are published on the Group’s website.

During the year ended 31 March, 2020, 4 meetings were
held. The attendance records for the audit committee
meetings are set out below:

EEREE
BEREEE

BERZZESMERBIIFNTESMAN
mEHAE T HRPBREA RN EERNS
Zkéﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfiﬂ“%ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ e
EeMARBELEEEIE  KERZT
;’%Iéﬁi&?}%%}llf‘ﬁi o

REEZZEGCRESE EXLE8e
ZH&%E’@%%%‘$ EIECESIN- 1Pl
R JHAAKRBEZVZRE PHIRE

HERPHRE  ERIATREHRA
BREZETIBR R ARBAETB
REz TIFEHG - MREYER - £77 i%ﬁﬁ

B ERB AR EMER - AR
B -

EEEMENCERZESeRESEDE
N E TR

REzE TE=ZA=+—HILFE
A %TZRE%’%TTTEU’QQ% EBIZE
BggmsEasEsmT

Directors’
Attendance
EEHER

Members of the Audit Committee BERZEEE,
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FRESH L 4/4
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy =HEHL 4/4
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BUM ST AE 4/4

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under its terms of reference and other
duties of the Existing Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results and the Interim
Report and Annual Report of the Group and other financial,
internal control and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
Management, the Group internal and external auditors, with
a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets
the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to consider their
reports on the scope and outcome of their independent
review of the interim financial report and on their annual
audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representing from
Deloitte of their independence and objectively and holds
meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of their
audit, approve the fees thereon, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if required, to
be provided by them. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditors.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of Deloitte for
various services listed below is as follows:

e  Audit services — includes audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditors.
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Audited related services - included services that
would normally be provided by an external auditors
but not generally included in audit fees, for example,
audit of the Group’s pension plans, due diligence and
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or process,
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes
(if any). The external auditors are to be invited to
undertake these services that they must or are best
placed to undertake in their capacity as auditors.

Taxation related services — includes all tax compliance
and tax planning services except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. All other significant taxation
related work may be undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

Others services — includes, for example audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also permitted to assist management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it review with the Group’s internal
auditors the work plan for their audit together with their
resources requirements and consider the report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes its recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
a Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis. Dr. Sun
Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of the Committee. The
Committee meets for the determination of the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management of the Group.
In addition, the Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessing the performance of Directors and senior executive
of the Group and determining their remuneration packages.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are published on the Group’s
Website.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees
also participate in bonus scheme based on the performance
of the Group and the individual’s performance.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two Remuneration
Committee meetings have been held. Throughout the year,
all members of the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
market data, the Group’s business activities and human
resources issues, and headcounts and staff costs. The
Remuneration Committee had also reviewed and approved
the proposed directors’ fees for year ended 31 March 2021,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2020 and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors. However, members of the Remuneration
Committee do not participate in the determination of their
own remunerations.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provisions A5.1 to A5.4 provide for the establishment
of a nomination committee. The Board has not established
a nomination committee as it considers that all Directors
should be involved in performing the duties set out in such
code provisions. However Executive Directors identify
potential new directors and recommend to the Board for
decision. The Board considers potential directorship based
on the candidate’s qualifications, business experience and
suitability to the Company. During the year ended 31 March
2020, no new director had been nominated.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Code provision E.1.5 relates to disclosure of dividend policy.
The Company does not have a dividend policy and the
Board will decide on the declaration/ recommendation of
any future dividends after taking into consideration a number
of factors, including the prevailing market conditions, the
Group’s operating results, business plans and prospects,
financial position and working capital requirements, and
other factors that the Board considers relevant.

GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL
CONTROL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system
of risk management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board also evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to accept in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic and business objectives. It
is also review and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of risk management and internal control on an ongoing
basis. Reporting and reviewing activities include review
by the Executive Directors and the Board and approval of
detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and plans
provided by the management of the business operations,
review by the Board of actual results against budgets,
review by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of
internal audit function and risk management function, as well
as regular business review by Executive Directors and the
executive management team of each core business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on an
ongoing basis.
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Risk Management

The Group adopts an Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework which is consistent with the COSO (the
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission) framework. The framework facilities systemic
approach to the management of risks within the Group,
coupled with a strong internal control environment, enabling
the Group effectively manage of risks it faces, be they
strategic, financial, operational or compliance. The main
features of the risk management and internal control
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies
and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce. The
Board of Directors determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Risk Management Taskforce identifies risks that would
adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to
be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit
function to assist the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies
in the design and implementation of internal controls
are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are
taken.
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The Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman and
the Group Finance Director have the responsibility of
developing and implementing risk mitigation strategies
including the deploying of insurance to transfer the financial
impact of risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible
for arranging appropriate insurance coverage including
Directors Liability Insurance to protect Directors of the
Group against potential legal liabilities.

Risk management report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors at least once a
year and internal control report is submitted half-a-year.
The Board of Directors had performed annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board of Directors
in relation to result of risk and internal control review;
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing
Rules. The Board of Directors considers the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities &
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board is overall responsible for monitoring the
operations of the business within the Group. Executive
Directors are appointed to the Board of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of the operations of
those companies, including attendance at Board meetings,
review and approval of business strategies, budgets and
plans, and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each
business in the division within the agreed strategies and
similarity the management of each business is accountable
for its conduct and performance.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business and the Executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by Executive Directors. Executive Directors
review the differences to the budget and for approval. When
setting budgets, management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.
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The Executive Directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results and key operating statistics of each
business and hold regular meetings with the executive
management team and senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance
against budgets, forecasts, significant risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, Group Finance Director and members
of his finance team review monthly performance against
budget and forecast, and to address accounting and finance
related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval prior to commitment by the Group Finance
Director or Executive Directors are required for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approval
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

Internal audit department reporting to the Group Managing
Director and Deputy Chairman on regular basis and also
directly to the Audit Committee if necessary, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and the
effectiveness of the risk management activities and controls
in the Group’s business operations. Using risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the dynamics of the
Group activities, internal audit derives its yearly audit plan
which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and reassessed
during the year as needed to ensure that adequate
resources are deployed and the plan’s objectives are met.
Internal audit is responsible for assessing the Group’s
internal control system, formulating an impartial opinion on
the system, and reporting its findings to the Group Finance
Director, Group Managing Director and the Audit Committee
as well as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues
have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular
dialogue is maintained with the Group’s external auditors
so that both are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scopes of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
team. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that the effective governance structure is put in place to
continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices within the Group in light of evolving environment
and regulatory requirements.

Under the term of reference, the Audit Committee has been
delegated the corporate function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance
within the Group. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling
its responsibilities, Company Secretary with representatives
from key departments of the Company are continuously
examine the corporate governance structure of the Group,
provide updates, identify emerging matters of compliance,
structure appropriate compliance mechanisms and monitor
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied throughout
the year with all the code provisions of the CG Code
applicable during the year except deviations explained in the
previous relevant paragraphs.
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Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’ internal control
system for the year ended 31 March, 2020 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and is satisfied that such
system are effective and adequate. In the view of the Board,
the system of internal control of the Group is sufficient to
safeguard the interest of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior Management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by
various channels including interviews and meetings. The
Group specially assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Group
Finance Director, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests of information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the view of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate with the Board or
Management directly.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to the shareholders
through publication of notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices, financial reports to shareholders,
additional information are also available to the shareholders
on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meeting
of the Company, such as the annual general meeting and at
which the Chairman and Directors are available to answer
questions on the Group’s business. All shareholders have
statutory right to call for extraordinary general meeting and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders
by sending to the Company Secretary at the registered
office a written request for such general meeting together
with the proposed agenda items. All substantial resolutions
at the general meeting are decided on a poll. The poll is
conducted by the Group’s Share Registrars and the results
of the poll are published on the websites at The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group. Financial
and other information is made available on the Group’s
website, which is regularly updated.
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In accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We”, and “Our”)
presents this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”, or “FY2020”).

REPORTING SCOPE

We are principally engaged in the trading business of luxury
watches. This report presents, aligned with the reporting
scope of the last year, our ESG policies, programmes and
performance in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China
during the Reporting Period.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Company strictly follows the four Reporting Principles
during the preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality: Our Company conducted the annual
stakeholder engagement and identified the
material ESG issues during the Reporting
Period. The final ESG issues have been
confirmed by the management and the
Board of the Company.

Quantitative: Our Company monitored various Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI”) during the
Reporting Period, which are presented
in this Report, to keep track of the
progress of our ESG initiatives. In this
way, the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management system can be evaluated
and validated. For all standards and
methods adopted for calculating the KPI
(if applicable), please refer to the relevant
sections in the Report.

Balance: The Report presents an unbiased picture
of the Company’s ESG performance during
the Reporting Period.
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Consistency: The Company adopted consistent
methodologies in the data calculation
as compared to prior years to show

comparable ESG data over time.
OUR ESG GOVERNANCE

We believe a well-developed corporate governance
structure is the key to success of our ESG strategy.
Therefore, we have established an ESG taskforce, which
includes senior management as well as department heads
of different functions while the Board of Directors has the
overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG reporting and
strategy in order to achieve green operations for sustainable
development. The key responsibilities of the ESG taskforce
include the following:

Establishing the long-term ESG goals and missions of
the Company;

o Monitoring and managing ESG-related risks;

o Evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s ESG
management systems; and

° Reporting the ESG objectives achieved to the Board on
a regular basis.

The ESG taskforce is authorised by the Board to carry out
its tasks including stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. External professional advices could be sought
at the expense of the Company when the ESG risks are
assessed to be material.

We are committed to complying with the latest laws and
regulations as well as the industry standards in our ESG
practice. Our ESG initiatives are revised and communicated
timely with staff members in order to enhance the efficiency
of the ESG tasks.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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We review our risk management process on a regular
basis. Material risks will be assessed and discussed by the
abovementioned ESG taskforce and the Board. Internal
control measures will be designed and implemented
to mitigate the ESG risks. Please refer to the “RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” section of the
Company’s “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” for
details of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand that stakeholders’ comments are crucial
to our decision-making process as well as our long-term
success in the future. Therefore we engage our stakeholders
by active communication and interaction. We have adopted
the following engagement methods for our stakeholders:

# Stakeholders

B P RRERER o LA ESG/)
AREREESFHRRISERRR - AL
EEREEAS TR RMIT KT KESG
[\ o B B PR K 1A HR BE PR | E A a6 B
B FR2EARALEERRSE IZIRA
REE R BRI | —6

MEHEEES R

LI - FSEAE 2 ERERMARK
ZRREFREEKRINEBEER -
it 3 PIRETR AR M & B ) SRR A 25 AH

ESEHES - RPCRAA T EEE
SEIE

Engagement Methods

M EEE BT
1 Suppliers and Business Partners o Meetings
HER MR e
° Daily email communications
AEE B
° Regular evaluations
E BT
2 Customers e  Company website
B NSIEER
e Communication in retailing points
TERIN
e  Customer service hotline
B R 2 AR
o Enquiry emails
B BH
3 Employees o Internal trainings
== e
e  Staff notices and announcements
BIBEEAE
e  Annual performance appraisal
FERRTZ
o Internal meetings
REEES

Annual Report 2020
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# Stakeholders
Fz=iErEE

4 Investors and Shareholders

KREERRER

Engagement Methods
BT %

General meetings

& N

Annual and interim reports
FRERPHEE

Circulars and announcements
B EAE

Company website

NCIE R

5 Government and Supervising Authorities

BUT K 558 #RE

Email communications

EBE

Meetings

o

= 0%

Government websites regarding regulations

BT A9VE 7 AR

6 Social Groups and Public

Charitable activities

HEHEBRAR REEY
° Public consultation emails
ARHENEE
7 Media ° Press releases
e A

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

For the identification and assessment of material ESG
issues, we have conducted a materiality assessment with
regard to the ESG Reporting Guide. Our approach to the

EEMFTE

R BN AR ERESGHRE  HFIEH
ESGHREESIETERMERNE - K&
ZUFHETERFEAT

materiality assessment includes the following:

|dentification of ESG issues
A ESG 2

Assessment of the ESG issues
TEESGEE

Prioritisation of material ESG issues

BREERBEANESGEE

Annual Report 2020

Prior to the internal meetings with our business functions and
questionnaires to both internal and external stakeholders to
identify potential ESG issues of the Company, we also took
reference to our peers’ ESG disclosed issues.
BATAZE TSI GE BRIT A EB @ 5% - I A1 1D Ko 7R 3D A1) 2 4 B 2 Tk 25
- ABAARRAIREREESGREZH - TEL2ERENEEKE
ESG#&E °

We discussed, assessed and prioritised our ESG issues by
considering the social, environmental and economic impact
towards the Company.
BPFEZBEHARFZHE REMKBEXERR - A ENREE
ESGEBNBEIRT

We concluded our material ESG issues to our management and
the Board, and decided the ESG issues to be summarised and
presented in this ESG Report.
BMMEKRESGHEERNEREREFTGIES - WAEKNARESGH
EREENZ25 2 ESGHERA °
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After the materiality assessment performed during our RAFHBEELRXRBBABATEEETE
stakeholder engagement, we identified the following material % > BPE#ANATRARBRERE 2 AN
ESG issues of the Company which are covered in this B]E KESG A& :

Report:

HAEENmERE cE2 1t

Importance to the Stakeholders of the Group

Materiality to the Business of the Group

BAREEEXBHCEEN

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RERKITEBEEBRAD A
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# ESG Issues

General
—REEH

1 Compliance
B
Environmental
RE
2 | Air emissions and greenhouse gas emissions
REBBE FOR = REB B

3 [Non-hazardous waste

BmEREZEY)

4 |Energy consumption

FERE

5 [Water consumption

KB IR IAFE

6 |Use of packaging materials

ERABEME

7 | Noise pollution

IR )5

8 |Environmental Impacts from Investments
REHRRNTE

Social

HE
9 |Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

B - BT MR E

10 |Employee compensation and benefits

& B 2 il A8 A

11 |Employee working hours and rest periods
& B TIER B N R A

12 |Equal opportunity

TEKS

13 |Workplace health and safety
TESRERER S

14 |Employee training and development

BB H RERE

15 | Anti-child and anti-forced labour

By 1E & T Ry 1k5& il 55 T

16 | Supply chain relationship management
HIEGERRE IR

17 |Product responsibility

Ematt

Annual Report 2020 —E_EFER
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# ESG Issues
ESG =2

18 |Service quality
RIBE =

19 |Advertising and labelling
B RIRE

20 |Data privacy and protection
BRILEE & IR

21 [Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
REE RIS RE

22 |Community Investment
HERE

In this Report, we have combined ESG Issue #17 Product
responsibility and #18 Service quality into one part named
Product responsibility and service quality below. ESG Issue
#7 Noise pollution is also described inside the Renovation
works part below. Lastly, the relevant regulations and rules
have been mentioned in the corresponding sections to
address the compliance concerns from the stakeholders.

In FY2020, we have also added a new ESG issue which
is Advertising and labelling as a result of the concern from
stakeholders. Based on the above analysis, this Report will
cover the following major ESG related issues, and describe
them in order according to the importance of the ESG
issues to our stakeholders.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Social, Employment and Labour Practices HE  EEREIER
ESG aspects ESG aspects
as set out in Material ESG issues as set out in Material ESG issues
ESG Guide for the Company ESG Guide Area for the Company
ESG 3| % s ESG 3| s
ZESGEE ADEZEKRESGEE ZESGEM gk ADEZEKESGHEE
B6 Product — Product B1 Employment — Employee
Responsibility responsibility and EE compensation and
ERET service quality benefits
EmEERRBER BEH M R E7
— Data privacy and — Recruitment,
protection promotion and
BRALRE RiRE dismissal

e B REE
— Advertising and
labelling — Equal opportunity

— Employee working
hours and rest

periods
EEIERZRERS
B2 Health and — Workplace health B3 Development — Employee training
Safety and safety and Training and development
BEHEZ T TEGMiRE FR R EEEIIRER
g
B7 Anti-corruption | —  Anti-corruption B8 Community — Social responsibility
RES and anti-money Investment HEERE
laundering HtERE
REFRIILE
KEE
B5 Supply Chain — Supply chain B4 Labour — Anti-child and anti-
Management relationship Standards forced labour
HEHRERE management LTIZE BEET R
HERBERER w5 T
Annual Report 2020 —EEEERHR
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Environmental RiE

ESG aspects ESG aspects
as set out in Material ESG issues as set out in Material ESG issues
ESG Guide for the Company ESG Guide for the Company

ESGfE5IH /& ESG &5 Hfr#
ZESGEH ANRZEXESGHERE ZESGEH ARRZEXESGHERE

A2 Use of — Energy A3 Environmental — External lighting
Resources consumption Impacts from FAME X
EFAH FEae Investments
REHRERNZ |— Renovation works
— Use of packaging & £EIi2
materials

ERERME

Al Emissions — Non-hazardous
By waste
EZEEY)

— Air emissions

REHR

— Greenhouse Gas
Emissions

BERBHH

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEXRITEBEERAQA
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SOCIAL, EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Product Responsibility
Product responsibility and service quality

Being one of the largest watch retailers in Hong Kong, the
Company has joined the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Scheme”
of the Hong Kong Q-Mark Council to attest the quality of
its products and services. To achieve high product and
service quality, the Company only imports watches from
manufacturers who use environmentally friendly and safe raw
materials for production. This ensures the products we sell
to our customers are safe. During the reporting period, the
Company is not aware of any product recall due to safety
and health reasons. Moreover, the Company uses marketing
materials provided by the suppliers to ensure consistency
between actual product specification and information on the
marketing materials. It guarantees the compliance with the
Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial
Code in Macau and Advertisement Laws in Mainland China.
During the Reporting Period, we have not identified any
material non-compliance with the abovementioned laws and
regulations.

The Company’s retail shops are all located at prime
locations to allow customers to enjoy convenient and
comfortable shopping experience. The Company has
established a specially designed VIP lounge at the flagship
stores to provide a private, nice and leisure environment
for customers to exchange professional knowledge and
insights of timepieces with our staff. Our professional sales
team are well-trained and strive to provide comprehensive
and knowledgeable advice accompanied with sincere and
premium after-sale services to each customer.

Customer feedback can be communicated through various
channels such as designated customer service hotline, email
address and social media platforms. Reports of enquiries
and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by
the management team for improvements on products
and services. During the Reporting Period, the Company
is not aware of any serious products and service related
complaints due to safety and health reasons.

Annual Report 2020
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With our persistent sincerity and valuable relationship with
customers, the Company has been awarded the “Service
Industry Leader — Silver Award” by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association.

Data privacy and protection

The Company respects the data privacy of our prestigious
customers, business partners and staff. It strives to protect
the privacy in the collection, processing and use of personal
data. The Company strictly follows the data protection
regulations in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.
Furthermore, the Company has deployed appropriate
technical measures in place, such as firewall and anti-virus
software, to protect personal data against unauthorised use
or access. The Company guarantees that the personal data
is securely kept and processed only for the purpose for
which it has been collected.

We devote our efforts in compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Sale of Goods Ordinance,
Trade Description Ordinance, Supply of Services (Implied
Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial Code and
Personal Data Protection Act in Macau, and Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
Advertisement Laws in Mainland China. During the Reporting
Period, we have not identified any material non-compliance
with the abovementioned laws and regulations.

Advertising and labelling

We execute our marketing strategy with the principle of
integrity as it is our responsibility to treat our customers fairly
and truthfully. Therefore, our marketing, advertising, and
sales related materials and services must always be genuine
and precise with the aim to meet the customer needs. We
never misrepresent any untruthful statements that would as
a result mislead our customers. Our advertisements are all
factually correct to the real product. Our products are only
offered to meet the customers’ needs and we never sell
unsuitable product.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy,
pleasant and efficient work environment for its staff. In
order to ensure the work environment is healthy and safe,
various administrative measures such as workplace safety
posters, training courses and practical guidelines have been
implemented to communicate such a concept to all staff in
its extensive retail network. Regardless of seriousness and
locations, all cases of injury are required to be reported to
the head office for further assessment under the internal
policies and procedures so as to ensure proper handling
of the cases and execution of preventive measures. In
FY2020', the number of lost days by the Company’s
employees due to work-related injuries was 2 days” and we
have not identified any case of work-related fatalities.

As a responsible employer, all staff are entitled to the
Company’s medical insurance and other competitive fringe
benefits to enable them to have easier access to preventive
and emergency health care services and afford treatment.

We realise the laws and regulations about workplace health
and safety have been tightened and more aware by the
local authorities. We have spent efforts in compliance with
the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong, safety laws in
Macau (i.e. Section 2/83/M), and Work Safety Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid workplace health and safety-related laws and
regulations.

The system for collection of work-related injuries and fatalities data
was established in the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was
not available.

The lost day injuries were caused by the accidental slippery by
employee and furniture fatigue. The Company would conduct more
safety trainings and regular facility inspection in the future in order
to enhance employee safety awareness and safety in working
environment.

Annual Report 2020
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Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

We believe that honesty, integrity and fairness are of vital
importance to its business operations. The Company
has incorporated a strict code of conduct in its staff
manual for all employees to specify that solicitation and
acceptance of advantages are prohibited and breaches of
the code of conduct would result in disciplinary actions.
Regular declaration of interest is compulsory for certain
staff depending on grades and positions. Reminders are
sent to employees regularly, and our business partners,
suppliers and contractors are also informed of our policy
on declaration of interests. Employees have been given
induction briefing organised by the Company or seminars
on anti-corruption regularly organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The Company
also maintains a set of whistleblowing procedures and
periodically reviews the effectiveness of its internal control
systems.

We adhere to the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the bribery, corruption and money laundering,
for example, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance in Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector in Macau, and Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC, Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery and Criminal Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Supply Chain Management
Supply chain relationship management

Since its establishment in 1961, we have established and
maintained strong relationships with various well-known
luxury European watch brands. Many of these brands
are accredited for their supreme quality and excellent
craftsmanship. Furthermore, their products are required to
comply with high production standards and pass through
various testing procedures to ensure quality. Apart from
product quality, we also consider the reputation, as well
as the environmental and social performance of the watch
manufacturers before establishing business relationship with
them. Our Company purchases well-known luxury watches
from their brand regional offices. The following table shows
the total number of suppliers in FY2020° across different
regions:

HEgEE
REBEFEE

ARBA —NNR—FRILIAK  —HE—
R % B BOMN B SR an R S R M RR R
BF - ZEmETNVEESRELR T
BREEIES - W BEZERANSE
SEERENBBTRAS - AR
B-RERMENIN  HEREEREY
EBBER > RFITEREEELIRRER
HETEZRE - ARBIARE o &
EMERFBANANBEEE - TRETR
ZT_THFCTRMENRER A

Mainland
Hong Kong China
B8 B A it
Supply chain management
HEEE IR
No. of suppliers Supplier 100 60 20 180
HERMEAE HER

Employment

Considering human resources as the most important asset
of the Company, the Company has established employment
policies and guidelines based on the local employment laws
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

9 The system for collection of the number of suppliers was established

in the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was not available.
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Employee compensation and benefits

The Company takes reference from local industrial average
to determine staff remuneration and other fringe benefits.
Experience and qualifications of staff are also taken into
account. Key performance indices, depending on staff
position, have been adopted to measure staff performance
in determining staff salary packages.

Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

The Company hires and promotes staff who share and
support the Company’s missions, values and work ethics.
The Company treasures those who demonstrate diligence,
initiative, responsibility and integrity. Hiring and promotion
are based on performance and merit.

Total workforce in FY2020*

Hong Kong
B8

Total workforce

1B S F MK 45 7

ARRSBEMITERFAKFEER TH
B E RN EE - E L2 &R ARERT
EEZEZY - BEEBIHSFER IR
FTERBEZEREIBRUMmME)GHEET
=B o

HE - B REE

AR A RRERRR L F AR FME
o BEMBRERZET - ARAER
REHE T8 FENABRTEHZE
T ARRARUARRENERERRE TR

o

—ETHFEEIEH:

Mainland
Macau China

-4 PE Rt

BTEH

Full-time employee Employee 186 22 353 561
TRES (==

Total workforce by gender

RIMRIE Dz B THE

Male Employee 114 10 77 201
EeRis (==

Female Employee 72 12 276 360
g (==

Total workforce by age group

RERE D ZBETHEH

Below 30 Employee 12 3 38 53
30AA T ’EE

30-50 Employee 112 13 298 423
B0 E50% (=

Over 50 Employee 62 6 17 85
50 5% £ (==

*  The system for collection of total workforce data was established in

the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was not available.
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Dismissal is considered for underperformance, misconduct

and/or fraud. All dismissal cases will be carried out in
accordance with the Employment Laws in Hong Kong,

Macau and Mainland China.

Employee turnover rate® in FY2020°:

ETEXRBEXE-
FEARREERBEHBRRE - FIERER
SREE R RPE R ZEEED

—
ES

TREER/RTILEEK

1T o

:g:;ﬁﬁﬁ¢521g,§m9§$6 :

Hong Kong

Bt

Mainland
China

RER

Employee resigned/terminated
BT BRES
Total Employee 21 2 53 76
st &8
Turnover rate — 11.29% 9.09% 15.01% 13.55%
Employee resigned/terminated by gender
RIERIB D 2 BHEBBES
Male Total Employee 15 1 16 32
Sk G B8
Turnover rate — — 15.92%
R &
Female Total Employee 6 1 37 44
g BF B8
Turnover rate — — 12.22%
R
Employee resigned/terminated by age group
REERE D 2 BT BBES
Below 30 Total Employee 5 0 13 18
30T CEl B8
Turnover rate — — 33.96%
K
Between 30-50 Total Employee 8 1 36 45
30 £ 507% a5 8
Turnover rate — — 10.64%
AR
Over 50 Total Employee 8 1 4 13
505 A E CEL B8
Turnover rate — — 15.29%
IS

Employee turnover rate (percentage) = Number of employee departure

of the category/Total employees at the end of the Reporting Period x

100%
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The system for collection of employee turnover rate was established in
the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was not available.

BERAEEERGNRERBRRY B -F
— N FNEEAAA -

BERAE(BOL)=2BHEERBAZ/2
BERH BB 4B x 100%
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Equal opportunity

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. The
Company emphasises human capital diversity, and is
against any kind of discrimination. The Company ensures
equal opportunity in all of its human resources processes,
regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability,
family status, and race of the staff.

Employee working hours and rest periods

Working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare are determined based on local industrial averages.
Experience, qualifications and seniority of staff are taken into
account as well.

We have put great emphasis to the compliance with the
labour-related laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law, and Framework Law on Employment
Policy and Worker’s Rights in Macau as well as Labour
Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

Development and Training
Employee training and development

The Company considers human resources as vitally
important to the success of its business. Therefore,
the Company has developed a comprehensive training
programmes consisting of product knowledge, service and
selling skills, complaints handling techniques and managerial
competences. These training courses are provided for
different levels of staff based on their job responsibilities.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The Company also offers induction training courses for
communicating corporate values, service standards and
code of conduct to new joiners. In addition, leadership
programmes organised by external professional institutions
have been provided to management personnel so as to
equip them with proper professional management skills.
Furthermore, the Company has engaged external service
providers to perform independent evaluation on the
performance of frontline staff. It helps identify potential
improvement areas to enhance customer service skills of the
staff.

The percentage of employees trained” in FY2020°%:

RRARMAEFABESRHABREIR
B ERETHREXEEE  RBEERT
BFR e AN RABNEREREABR
AR IMNESEWEE N 2 BT e EBR
ZEBECEEEEBREE - 1IN ANAF
ELEIINERBEEHBE LT ZARET
ZRE - BYMEBRAENEZE &8
TZRFRBHEIT -

Z_THMFERIEEZEIL®

Mainland
Hong Kong Macau China
BH P FER it
Number of employee trained by gender
BERIE D 2 ZIIEE AR
Male Total trained Employee 45 7 10 62
Bt workforce (==
Rl THRARK
Employees — — 30.85%°
training rate
BB
Female Total trained Employee 22 0 14 36
g workforce (==
2B THEAH
Employees - - 10.00%”°
training rate
= B[S
" Employee training rate (percentage) = Number of trained workforce T O RESIEREAL)=ZEANZIETIAR/2
of the category/Total workforce of the category at the end of the WMAARZLIERIB THRE x 100%
Reporting Period x 100%
®  The system for collection of employee training rate was established in b EEEINIRKERFERERPARY =T

the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was not available.

The employee training rate in Mainland China is relatively low
compared to the other two regions. We are dedicated to improving our
training development plan in the future.
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Mainland
Hong Kong China

gH ) B it
Total workforce and number of employee trained by employee category
RESERE D 2 BABRZIIEE A

General level Total workforce Employee 18 18 328 483
— AR 7 ETHAH (=]
Total trained Employee 42 6 20 68
workforce E8
T8 THEAR
Employees - - 14.08%°

training rate
(SRS

Middle Total workforce Employee 39 4 22 65
management level |8 T4 A £ ==
hARERE
Total trained Employee 21 1 3 25
workforce ==
THE THAR
Employees — — 38.46%°

training rate
(SRS

Senior management | Total workforce Employee 10 0 3 13
level BT#EAH ==
aRERE
Total trained Employee 4 0 1 5
workforce ==
B THBAE
Employees - - 38.46%°

training rate

(S SEEUES

°  The employee training rate in Mainland China is relatively low ° HEMMREMERAAL - RERMEE B IRE
compared to the other two regions. We are dedicated to improving our R o MO BER MR RFINERT
training development plan in the future. &l -
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The average training hours completed per employee'® in —E-EHE"ELZEE K FEHET
FY2020'": R gh 10

Mainland
Hong Kong China

b hE A
Total training hours by gender
IRl El 5 2 4855 5| 21

Male Training hours Hour 404 52 174 630
B 15 5)| B 81 N
Average training | Hour = 3.13
hours AN
TR I 2
Female Training hours Hour 265 0 224 489
gk 15 A1 21 /N
Average training | Hour = 1.36
hours N
T35 I 2K

Total training hours by employee category
RIEBRRIEI D 2 AT

General level Training hours Hour 280 50 318 648
— R 2 3| 2 /N
Average training | Hour — 1.34
hours N
955 3 B
Middle Training hours Hour 328 2 48 378
management level | 5 3l £ /N
hREEE
Average training | Hour — 5.81
hours AN
FI5E IR 2
Senior management| Training hours Hour 61 0 32 93
level 5 o1 2K /NE
Average training |Hour — 7.12
hours /|NB
I 5 I 2

©  Average training hours = Total number of training hours for employees 0 EEREIINSBEREZRSNERBRNEY W

of the category/ Number of employees of the category at the end of —E— N ENEIERAA o
the Reporting Period
""" The system for collection of employee training hours data was T = ZERIEE M AIEIEE 25
established in the Reporting Period and the data in FY2019 was not BARZ A RE B A8
available.
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Community Investment
Social responsibility

The Company demonstrates its care for society by giving
back to the community. We are committed to enhancing
the community’s well-being and social services. During
the reporting period, the Company as a whole, as well as
individual senior management personnel have been actively
donating to various charitable organisations with a lump
sum of HKD$252,000 equivalent. On one hand, it provides
funding to support charity activities. On the other hand,
it motivates the staff to join the charity activities, thereby
magnifying the effect.

Since 2015, the Company has sponsored the FIVB Volleyball
World Grand Prix (Hong Kong), which is an international
women’s volleyball competition held annually by Federation
Internationale de Volleyball (FIVB). The Company aims at
raising public concerns and awareness of physical health by
supporting the worldwide sports competition. The Company
has also sponsored the World Heart Day Run for Heart 2019
event for raising awareness about cardiovascular disease
including heart disease and stroke.

Since 2007, Oriental Watch Company has sponsored
Médecins Sans Frontieres (MSF) Day for 13 consecutive
years, supporting the humanitarian work from MSF in more
than 70 locations across the globe. With adequate funding,
over 35,000 personnel can provide medical aid across
national boundaries, regardless of their race, religion, gender
and political stance.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Labour Standards
Anti-child and anti-forced labour

All of the Company’s offices and retail stores strictly comply
with the local law’s requirements, with no tolerance on child
and forced labour. During our hiring process, we check and
verify the personal data of the potential candidates in order
to prevent from hiring child or forced labour.

We have noted the requirements about child or forced
labour in the local laws and regulations of our operating
locations. Therefore we strictly adhere to these laws and
regulations such as Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law in Macau and Labour Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company exerts its best efforts in protecting the
environment from its business activities and workplace. The
Company is committed to promoting the green concept
by introducing environmentally friendly business practices
and educating its employees to raise their awareness on
environmental protection.

Multiple measures have been adopted to reduce energy and
other resource use, minimise waste, increase recycling and
promote environmentally friendly practices in its supply chain
and retail network operations. During FY2020, owing to the
outbreak of COVID-19, this has resulted in a decrease of
our overall sales revenue. Along with the utilisation of flexible
work arrangements, the overall consumption of energy and
use of other resources (including packaging materials) of
FY2020 decreased as compared to that of FY2019.

Annual Report 2020
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During our daily operations, we are subject to the Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance and Motor Vehicle Idling
(Fixed Penalty) Ordinance in Hong Kong, environmental
laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/91/M), and Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. We strictly adhere to all applicable
environmental laws and regulations and we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

Use of Resources

Owing to the nature of our retail business, our operations
do not involve significant water consumption and no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose was noted during
the Reporting Period. Fuels, electricity and packaging bags
are the major resources we use in our luxury watch retail
business.

Energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the types and amount of
energy consumed were as follows:

FY2020
et Sk

Energy Type Unit Amount
RERER By
Electricity™ Ei kWh

TR/ 2,561,487
Diesel 4550 Liter A7t 11,326
Petrol A Liter AFF 22,503

> During the Reporting Period, we have established a system for

collection of electricity data in China regions, while in FY2019, only
data for Hong Kong and Macau regions was collected.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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FY2019

—E-NBEF
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
foot of foot of
operating operating
locations) Amount locations)
BRE(BYA RE(GYS
UN—E 3.k ) BE WREFME)
44.69 2,780,631 48.54
0.20 14,148 0.25
0.39 23,682 0.41
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To minimise energy consumption in its retail stores and
offices, the Company advocates the efficient use of energy
by adopting green technologies and close monitoring
on operations. As a retailer of luxury watches, the most
significant use of energy has arisen from the electricity
consumption in retail stores for air conditioning and lighting.
The Company monitors technology advancements in
lighting systems and upgrades the systems accordingly so
as to increase overall operating efficiency. For instance,
the Company has replaced many of the traditional light
bulbs with LED ones, which are more energy efficient. In
addition, the Company measures and records the energy
consumption on an on-going basis to analyse its energy
consumption efficiency.

Use of packaging materials
We consume packaging bags and materials in our business.

During the Reporting Period, the packaging materials
consumed were as follows:

AEERESEERNAEERE  AQF
REBEXEALER REEBBEREAR
RN BUNER - (EAREEKRTE
7 RARERETEECEARRARE
B ARRBERPRANEMBERE - I
TEAEF AL - EMIRFA B EE M o f
o AR BEABER B = 2 LED &R E
RREDEHREA - Lo - RRARSHE
ST E M ECERAERE - IADITELBERERRES ©

REaENH

AMEEBEROEREME - 2R
P - FRREBEMEIT -

FY2020 FY2019

—ETHE —E-NHF

Unit Amount Amount

B EfE 28

Packaging materials BEME kg T3 13,357 14,720

During the Reporting Period, we have established a more
comprehensive data collection system for our packaging
materials. In addition to the record of normal packaging
materials presented in FY2019, we have consolidated our
consumption of all other kinds of shopping bags including
recycled shopping bags.

All of the packaging bags distributed to customers are made
of Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) accredited paper
which are more environmentally friendly. Furthermore, the
packaging bags are designed to fit the product size in order
to avoid excessive packaging. Packaging bags will only be
distributed upon customers’ request.
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Emissions

Owing to the nature of our retail business, the Company has
no production activities or facilities. Therefore, there were no
sewage discharge to the environment during the Reporting
Period.

Non-hazardous waste

Owing to the Company’s retail business nature, no
hazardous waste was produced during the Reporting
Period. For non-hazardous wastes, the major type was the
paper used for administrative work and the details of non-
hazardous wastes created were as follows:

FY2020
= B L

Type Unit Quantity
B By

Non-hazardous waste EEFEZEY) tonnes MA 21.76

As compared to FY2019, the reduction of non-hazardous
waste was mainly caused by a lower usage of paper and
our effective paper recycling initiatives.

To reduce office waste paper, the Company has been
creating a paperless working environment through increasing
the use of internet system gradually. On one hand, it
reduces environmental damage; on the other hand, it fits
commercial goals, as this saves office space used for storing
hardcopies and facilitates efficient information sharing via
office network. Furthermore, double-sided printing and
copying has become compulsory in the Company except
for special circumstances with approval obtained. Only used
paper can be used as draft paper by staff. Collection boxes
have been put in place to collect single-side used paper for
reuse and other scrap paper for recycling. These can help
reduce paper consumption and save costs substantially. To
monitor the paper usage efficiency, consumption records of
paper and printing have been regularly collected, assessed
and monitored.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Air emissions

We maintain vehicles for our executives and customers, as
well as for delivery purposes. Such vehicles are the major
source of our air emissions. During the Reporting Period,
our air emissions details were as follows:

Source of emission™ Unit
BEBUR By
Nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”) RE/L¥(TNOx]) tonnes Mg
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) mEL(SOx]) tonnes M@
Particular matter (“PM”) BIFRT([PM]) tonnes M

We are aware of the air emissions generated from our use
of vehicles so that we have established internal procedures
to reduce the negative impact and ensure the compliance
with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For example,
we monitored the vehicle conditions on a regular basis and
arranged the vehicles for annual test by the local authority.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Company’s major business is luxury watches retailing in
different geographical areas of the Greater China region, the
major direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 emission)
of the Company came from the use of vehicles. Our major
indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2 emission) and
other indirect greenhouse emissions (Scope 3 emission)

®*  The calculation of air emissions was based on the “Reporting Guidance

on Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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came from the electricity consumption and paper use of
offices and retail stores respectively. The details of the
greenhouse gas emission (“CO.,e”) were as follows:

RO REMEZEEEREHER(EE=
BT EREMAERTEERERA

o RERBHM(ICO)FBT ¢

FY2020 FY2019
g SRS —T-NHEF
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
foot of foot of
operating operating
Source of emission' Unit Quantity locations) Quantity locations)
BE(BYR BEMEYA
BERBOR By IR & 23t ) gE WReEFEm)
Scope 1'° EE—" tonne CO,e
8 CO,e 91.58 0.0016
Scope 2'° HE—" tonne CO,e
I8 CO,e 1,667.42 0.030 1,975.08 0.034
Scope 3"’ HE=" tonne CO,e
8 CO,e 51.86 0.00090
Total 185 tonne CO,e
1 COLe 1,810.86 0.032
We are cautious about the environment and the carbon  FHFIYLEZIREMIRTEIRISLS - 3
footprints in our operations. We have put into practice  fIEEEE TIRREMI RS EREDE

certain environmentally friendly initiatives in reducing the
greenhouse gas emission. Please refer to Use of Resources
for details.
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The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions was based on the
“Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by World Resources Institute
and World Business Council on Sustainable Development, “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” by Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, “CLP Sustainability Report 2018” by CLP
Holdings Limited, “HONG KONG Electric Sustainability Report 2018”
by Hongkong Electric Company Limited, “CEM Sustainability Report
2017” by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, “FE 32 @iE D2
REREBMZE AR WEIER (B17) " published by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, and “2017 F[E
WBEE R R R EAEELNEF" published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

This is the first year for the company to separately disclose Scope 1
emission, which include carbon emission from vehicles.

This is the first year for the company to separately disclose Scope 2
emission, which include carbon emission from electricity consumption
by the company.

This is the first year for the company to separately disclose Scope 3
emission, which include carbon emission from paper usage by the
company.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Environmental Impacts from Investments

As most of our retail stores are located at central business
areas, the Company endeavours to minimise its impacts
on the environment by identifying, assessing and managing
environmental impacts resulting from its various operational
activities regularly. For any significant impacts identified,
the Company will immediately formulate and execute
the corresponding mitigation measures and monitor its
effectiveness continuously to ensure the impacts have been
resolved.

External lighting

As a luxury watch retailer, the Company uses standout
advertising signs to attract customers, which may create
certain level of light. In view of that, the Company has
signed up to the “Charter on External Lighting” launched
by the Environment Bureau of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administration Region such that all advertising
signs of the retails stores will be switched off between 11p.
m. and 7a.m. on the following day.

Renovation works

Renovation works are carried out regularly to ensure our
retail shops offer pleasant environment to customers and to
increase our bargaining power when negotiating rental terms
with landlords. As such, noise and dust will be resulted
from the renovation works and affect the neighbourhood.
Although all renovation works are outsourced to third party
contractors which the Company has no direct control, we
require our contractors to execute all possible measures in
mitigating the negative impacts on the neighbourhood, for
example, requiring renovation works to be carried out during
non-peak hours and installing barriers to prevent dust and
noise from spreading out.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 to 84.

An interim dividend of 2.8 Hong Kong cents per share and
a special dividend of 8.7 Hong Kong cents per share was
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year.
A final dividend of 8.0 Hong Kong cents per share and a
special dividend of 5.0 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors are subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000, dividend reserve of HK$74,147,000 and
retained profits of HK$76,300,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$44.2
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum (resigned on 1 June 2020)

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of

this report, the other director of subsidiary of the Company
was Madam Cheong, Wai Lin.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

ESHACESERR AR

BREREZSFRAEERM(TEFSRARK
Bl1) £ 352 IEFMERE 2 &l PTaE 8% -
RZE-_ZTF=ZA=+—H ARQRAIZE
ERARB BN RABBRND TS 2
W HRBEEMARETETERRIN
ZESHBNE AN REBSHAEZSH
ERAR([BRPT]) 2T -

Number of shares held

igian
Percentage of
Total  issued share
Personal Family Corporate number  capital of the
interest interest interest of shares Company
BRATEHT
Name of director Esng BARE gz PGl Reag REBAL
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BREET 19,669,583 7920000 128,164,561 155,754,144 27.31%
(note (a))
(Wit(a)
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BT S 5,524,000 - (note (b)) 5,524,000 0.97%
(Wit )
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shiley ~ B&iEa T 2,640,000 221,161 (note (c)) 2,861,161 0.50%
(Wi ()
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain MEBRLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum BERLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FEEEL - - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.56%
(note (d))
(Wi ()
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Notes:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu and his wife, Madam Au Po Kee, are the
beneficial owners of 10% and 30.8% respectively of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited. Realtower Holdings Limited
and Dr. Yeung Ming Biu are the respective beneficial owners of 55%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 80% of the issued share capital of
Datsun Holdings Limited. He and his wife are also the beneficial
owners of about 26.8% and 17.9% respectively of the issued share
capital of Real Champ Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun
Holdings Limited is the beneficial owner of 127,776,000 shares in the
Company.

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the beneficial owner of 47.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the Company.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and his wife are the beneficial owners of
an aggregate of about 16.7% of the issued share capital of Realtower
Holdings Limited. He is also the beneficial owner of about 14.3% of
the issued share capital of Real Champ Limited.

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of about
13.3% of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors of the Company had any interest or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a period
of ten years commencing on the adoption date on 3
November 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company, the trustee of the eligible
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
eligible persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
No eligible persons shall be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and may include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before it can
be exercised. The exercise price per share payable on
the exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.
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The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised by the
participants at any time during the option period and
notwithstanding that the 2003 Share Option Scheme

had expired.

The following table discloses movements of the options
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme to
directors, certain employees and consultants during the

year:
Original
Name of category Date of grant exercise price
of participant of options ~per share
BhE FESR
SREENER RiRg fikf
HKS
AT
(note &)
{//;/‘/Ji?ﬁ/)
Directors
£
Or. Yeung Ming Biu 06.04.2011 413
ki
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 06.04.2011 413
BiikkE
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shiley  06.04.2011 413
BaELL
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain 06.04.2011 413
HERLE
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum
(resigned on 1 June 2020) 06.04.2011 413
(KoE=FE7f-AER)
Other employees
EftRE
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413
A ?E u/,‘%?b/‘
Type B note ¢) 29.08.2011 480
BEHc/
Consultants
Ef
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413
A ?E u/,‘%?b/‘
Type B note ¢) 29.08.2011 480
BE(Hc/
Total
it
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Adjusted
exercise price
per share

SRORE
HKS

AT
(note )
(Wis)

3.4
.44
3.44

3.4

3.4

344
N/A
T
3.44

NIA
TR

Exercisable period

ffeds

=1

06.04.2011 ~ 05.04.2021

06042011 - 06.04.2021

06.04.2011 — 0.04.2021

06.04.2011 ~ 05.04.2021

06042011 - 06.04.2021

06042011 - 06.04.2021

29.08.2011 - 26.08.2021

06.04.2011 - 06.04.2021

29.08.2011 - 26.08.2021

—EE_FREREFIN_F—=F
tT—A—BEm - BRETH2EE
1A e SCRE HA ) (e By ) 7 DATT 2 >
T _—_TE=FRERETEEER

TERBEF  ETRIEREMNE
MR = BB = F AR BEER
Wi B8 -

Number of shares Number of shares
under options at ~ Forfeited during  under options at
1.4.2017 the year ended 31.3.2019
and 31.3.2018 31.3.2019 and 31.3.2020
HoB-1% it Sy B3
MR-RZ ZR=t-R%
Z3-NE WEECE-nf Z80%E
S Zh=t-A ZAz1-H
ERESRZRHEA LEERY BRESRRAHA
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
3,600,000 - 3,600,000
3,600,000 - 3,600,000
11,620,000 - 11,620,000
14,400,000 - 14,400,000
18,000,000 - 18,000,000
5,640,000 (3,000,000} 2,640,000
5,000,000 - 5,000,000
54,560,000 (3,000,000) 51,560,000
—EZEFEER
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(b)

Notes:

(a) An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 July
2011 approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of
the Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for every
five ordinary shares held. The number of shares under the
outstanding options and the exercise price per share of the
outstanding options were adjusted accordingly pursuant to the
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

(b)  Type A represented share options were granted on 6 April
2011.

(c) Type B represented share options were granted on 29 August
2011.

2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13 August
2013, a new share option scheme was adopted with
effect on 3 November 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) after the expiry of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iiij a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes or
is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group. The purpose of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 57,061,022 shares, representing about 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on such
date. No eligible persons shall be granted an option in
any 12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
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1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The exercisable
period is determined by the directors of the Company,
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant, and may include a minimum period for which the
options must be held before it can be exercised. The
exercise price per share payable on the exercise of an
option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2 November 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under the
2013 Share Option Scheme during the year since its
effective date on 3 November 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, according to the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the
Company:

Name of shareholder

FERR

D FRLE B R 5 16 1 25 336 AR
FEZBRMHAR R-E-TF=A
Z+—B UTAT(EHEAFAR 2
FRBETRAR)RKAABRADES
i -

Percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of the

shares held Company

REREW EARATE#IT

FRERGEE RAEB DL

Datsun Holdings Limited Datsun Holdings Limited 127,776,000 22.40%
Furama Investments Limited Furama Investments Limited

(Note 1) (Baz1) 127,776,000 22.40%
Realtower Holdings Limited Realtower Holdings Limited

(Note 1) (K13t 1) 127,776,000 22.40%

FMR LLC FMR LLC 57,035,800 9.99%

Pandanus Associates Inc. Pandanus Associates Inc. 47,784,000 8.38%

Pandanus Partners L.P. Pandanus Partners L.P.

(Notes 2 and 3) (Hit2ok3) 47,784,000 8.38%
483A Bay Street Holdings LP 483A Bay Street Holdings LP

(Note 3) (K17E3) 46,002,000 8.07%
483A Bay Street Holdings 483A Bay Street Holdings

Management LLC Management LLC 46,002,000 8.07%
Fidelity Canada Investors LLC  Fidelity Canada Investors LLC

(Note 3) (H#3) 46,002,000 8.07%

FIL Limited (Note 3) FIL Limited (#/3% 3) 46,002,000 8.07%

Ntasian Discovery Master Fund Ntasian Discovery Master Fund 29,164,000 511%

TIG Advisors LLC TIG Advisors LLC 16,134,000 5.05% (Note 4)

(Kizt4)

Notes: st -

1. Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share capital of 1. Realtower Holdings Limited #%& Furama
Furama Investments Limited, which holds 80% of the issued share Investments Limited B3 1Ti% 2N 55% + Furama
capital of Datsun Holdings Limited. Accordingly, both Realtower Investments Limited Bl 5 £ Datsun Holdings
Holdings Limited and Furama Investments Limited are deemed under Limited B E4TARAR80% © E It - RIRFEH & 5]
the SFO to be interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company E 150 - Realtower Holdings Limited & Furama
held by Datsun Holdings Limited. Investments Limited¥3 # 1% & ¥ /A Datsun

Holdings Limited Fr#%.2 127,776,000 & A8 A &)
Btz -

2. Pandanus Partners L.P. was 100% owned by Pandanus Associates 2. Pandanus Partners L.P.H Pandanus

Inc. Associates Inc. #H 100% 2 #Exx

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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3. These companies were related. FIL Limited was 37.51% controlled
by Pandanus Partners L.P.

4. This percentage is according to the latest notice filed under the SFO
on 15 January 2008 on the basis of 319,253,000 shares then in
issue.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2020, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director or a connected entity of
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
94% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 80% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$252,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 34.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of about 560
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set

by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

FEEFRHER

FR - AEEAAEEEEG 2 BRERE
HAREEARBREL 4% - MAKERAK
HEFRAE ZRBREAOASBERRBEY
80% °

BESE BEIZHBEANTMAMRR(RE
ERAMERARRE B BITRAS% A L&)
MEAREBTAARERS REEE 2K
AN A o

ERNEOARQT LHES

FR ARAREEAHBARGER
B HESBERARR 2ERMLETES

?EI\E

FR - AEEED Z2BEA $£252,000/%8
7TE,O

TEER

REBRRMNZ TECEERERIENE
12B2F B ZLEERRSE -

B & BUR
R-E-_THFE=A=+—H K&EELH

HES60%ES °

AEEEEZHMERRBFHEESRK
F2WE - BEERBENHIE °

RAXRTEBEBRQF



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHE

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option schemes and directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures” above and in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 22 to 26.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.

Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Ming Biu
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R BENRE

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 83 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

B BT &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

BAREFITSEE

FRETFEERERMNERHE - R
SRR EVBERRNBATRAEEN
£H  GUEREERMRTEBRESY
BHREARGBABRFETREN - AL
eHELEHEEREFNER

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Net realisable value assessment of watches

F ik 2 o] BB FETE

We identified net realisable value assessment of
watches included in inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of amount of
watches to the consolidated statement of financial
position as at the end of the reporting period,
and significant judgements and estimate by
management in determining the net realisable value
for watches.

AR FHEREBRMRNGS MR REFEREKN - B

EEENEE T ERFERELERA G RMA
At Bt BRI ATFE 2 TR AT RFER G

REARETSIE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group
identifies slow-moving watches with reference to
the ageing analysis. The net realisable value of
the watches are determined by considering the
saleability of watches based on current market
conditions, pricing policies and strategies, as well
as the historical/latest available sales information
of similar watches. As at 31 March 2020, the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance) is
HK$780,556,000. Details of the allowance for slow-
moving watches charged during the year and the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance) at
31 March 2020 are set out in notes 10 and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
BARE M BHRERMT4AEE X BEEEEEER
EZRRE DT BRFHEFE - FERASHRFEDEKER
IR - EEBREERE  ARBUFEMNATE &
MHEENZRFRNAIFEREMETE - RZTZ
ZFE=ZA=+t—HB FENREHFHREER)R
780,556,000/8 7T - B RF N 2B FRERB R
RZZEZEF=A=+—BFHR2ERABEGORER)
DRIERERE SRR 10 K22 -

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAHRARETSRETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
watches included:

BAERETTFREENEF B

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
allowance policy on watches and evaluating
management’s process in identifying slow-
moving watches and determining the
allowance for watches;

TR BEEENFERBERCK TEETEER
AESHF RN EE FRBEHENET

o Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and
conditions of inventories;
AEERELLERTMA  BERKFHEE
B HEBGR MRS FEZHE - R
RIFEMRMERAH BB IBUR

° Reviewing inventory ageing analysis and
analysing the level of aged inventory; and
EHFERERSTESTRERFEKRT &

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
estimation of the net realisable value of
watches with reference to sales subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, on a sample
basis.

AEL2EUMEEEZEN 2P RENIE
EREMETE TR SR FENENEEMY -

RAXRTEEBRLQF
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
B BT &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
B BT &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Yiu Chung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2020

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEkEMESEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

Revenue Was

Cost of goods sold HE KA

Gross profit E]

Other income H A

Other gains and losses H b lras MEE

Impairment losses under BEEBARA T 2
expected credit loss model, BB EE (FBREE D)

net of reversal

Distribution and selling DI RIHER
expenses
— Expenses related to — HMEZHBERx
leases )
— Other distribution and — Hi D HRHE

selling expenses

Administrative expenses TR X

Finance costs Rl & B R \

Share of results of associates E(hEEE N a] 2 ¥45

Share of result of a joint BE—BEERAZ
venture E¥

Profit before taxation B 7% Al i Al

Income tax expense FIEMA X

Profit for the year F Mg

Other comprehensive Hi2m (%) K=
(expense) income N
Item that will not be RITEBEH S HEEIE

reclassified to profit or @ ZIHEE -

loss:

Change in fair value of AP EEF AR
equity instruments at 2EWE ([BRAF
fair value through other Bt AR 2 EU
comprehensive income @) ZIRARTARZ
(“FVTOCI”) NFEEEF)

Iltems that may be HE[pEER 72
reclassified subsequently to B HHE

profit or loss: . /

Exchange difference arising MEBINETSFTE &
on translation of foreign ZEH ERE
operations . ,

Reclassification — IR BN
adjustments for the & RETE =5
cumulative exchange BB RAE
differences upon
deregistration of a foreign
operation )

Change in fair value of debt BATVEGFAHME
instruments at FVTOCI H a2 BT A

ZRFEE

Release on redemption BORAFESAR
of debt instruments at ftb 22 E W e 2 BT
FVTOCI T AR#[D

Other comprehensive expense FREMEEHX
for the year
Total comprehensive income — FRZMEW B

for the year

Annual Report 2020

2019
—T-hnF

Notes HK$’000
Hiat FHET
5 2,352,683 2,437,184
(1,707,356) (1,834,224)

645,327 602,960

6 28,360 42,338
7 (32,160) (11,029)
8 (15,461) (253)
16 (144,836) (171,904)
(189,579) (162,268)
(155,328) (141,346)
9 (14,210) (1,959)
5,379 3,244

(59) 192

10 127,433 159,975
12 (28,324) (21,936)
99,109 138,039
(696) (468)

(40,056) (42,146)

- 2,256

(448) 60

(6) —

(41,206) (40,298)

57,903 97,741

CE-SEERH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEEkEMESEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

Profit (loss) for the year

attributable to: ( 48) ¢ %,

Owners of the Company VNN Z N

Non-controlling interests FEIERR =
Total comprehensive income A N ALTEEE

(expense) attributable to: (Fx )5 -

Owners of the Company ARREEG A

Non-controlling interests FEFE A HE o
Earnings per share FARA A

Basic R

Diluted i3

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2019
—T—-hnF
Note HK$’000
et TET
100,301 138,099
(1,192) (60)
99,109 138,039
59,096 97,848
(1,193) (107)
57,903 97,741
17.59 24.21

14 HK cents #l HK cents J& 1Ll

17.59 24,21
14 HK cents #1l HK cents 7811l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 March 2020
R-E-_FF=F=1+—H

2020 2019
—E-8E —NE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FET
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property, plant and EN T Y]
equipment 15 213,034 215,444
Right-of-use assets FHREESE 16 287,779 -
Deposits for acquisition g 27 E R T
of property, plant and (P&
equipment 3,591 10,636
Interests in associates iy RN o 17 63,981 37,337
Interest in a joint venture H—HEEQARZ
B 18 24,239 26,005
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 2 QA FEFAHME
Hilas 2 RATA 19 3,211 3,907
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAVEFAREME
HWamz EHITA 20 9,680 5,008
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE 28 5,153 24
Property rental deposits MERSES 24,186 31,463
634,854 329,824
Current assets MENEE
Inventories BE 22 798,693 823,654
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H MR X 23 112,755 148,576
Financial assets at fair value BT EFFAEBD
through profit or loss ([ FEEFAE
(“FVTPL”) w2 emEE 21 15,871 14,982
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEAFEFAEME
HbmzEBEIA 20 7,486 1,812
Taxation recoverable A] 3R O 418 7,330 4,470
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 24 936,632 1,084,911
1,878,767 2,078,405
Current liabilities nRBEE
Trade and other payables féi%&ﬁm‘éﬁﬁﬁ%k 25 86,774 119,026
Contract liabilities AEHEE 25 4,366 7,476
Lease liabilities %ﬁi’—iié El 26 101,663 —
Taxation payable FET 1518 12,237 2,758
Bank loans RITEK 27 5,667 63,367
210,707 192,627
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE AR R &
At 31 March 2020
R-E-—gEF=H=1+—A

2020 2019
—EB-FF —ZT—hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ik FET FET
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,668,060 1,885,778
Total assets less current BERBERRBDAEE
liabilities 2,302,914 2,215,602
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 28 2,864 2,001
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 205,773 —
Derivative financial BAFEFFAEMLS
instruments at FVTPL M =m 2 PTES R
TA 17 10,991 —
219,628 2,001
Net assets BEFE 2,083,286 2,213,601
Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital g A 29 57,036 57,036
Reserves & 2,026,575 2,155,697
Equity attributable to owners ~ ANARIZEA AEGER
of the Company 2,083,611 2,212,733
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (325) 868
Total equity B 2,083,286 2,213,601

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 230
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

HNEBIEEF 230 A A M B HERK
EEeR T _ZTFAAA-_+TRBHER
BETE  WHTIHEERERE

Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis

L BOTHE
CHAIRMAN DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
FE B AR E FARAETE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEAXTEBERRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREEX

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share Capital Asset Non-
Share  Share  option Statutory redemption  Capital revaluation  Special Translation Retained Dividend controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  reserve Sub-total interests Total
&x &
R REGE BRERE ieef RERE EAEE EGEE  GHRE  ABBRE  REEA RERE O SERER &
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Fhr TEr TEr TEr FEn TEr TEr TEr TEn T TEn TEn T TEr
(note c) (note b) (note g)
(i) (itb) (ita)
At 1 April 2018 (audited) WZE-/\ERA-A(EEHE) 57060 549306 83504 - 42 80 692 5180 79005 1398535 131241 2312169 975 2,313,144
Proft loss) for the year Ematl(§8) - - - - - - - - - 138,099 - 138,099 (60) 138,039
Change in far vaue of eouity ~~ RATEFALMEEREZR
instruments at FVTOCI KIRZDTERS - - - - - - (468) - - - - (468) - (468)
Exchange difference arising BERNSRFELERER
on franslation of foreign
operations - - - - - - - - (#2099 - - (42,099) [ @14
Reclassifcation adjustments —FEERR R AZAE
for the cumulative AEE ENIERE
exchange differences upon
deregistration of a foreign
operation - - - - - - - - 2,266 - - 2,266 - 2,66
Change in fair value of debt BATEIALHAENEL B
instruments at FYTOC BI&7ATEES - - - - - - 60 - - - - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive (expense)  EREWZE(ER) 4
income for the year - - - - - - (408) - (39,843 138,099 - 07848 (o) o774t
2018 final dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - [45649)  (45,649) - (45649
2018 special dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - (8059 (85,59 - (8559
2019 interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - - (1500 - (15970 - (1500
2019 interim special dividend
paid - - - - - - - - - [19621) - (4901 - [19601)
2019 final dividend proposed - - - - - - - - - (45629 45609 - - -
2019 special dividend proposed - - - - - - - - - (16,99) 76,99 - - -
Shares repurchased and
cancelled (note 29) (29) (a27) - - - - - - - - - (452) - (452)
Forfeiture of share options ERERN - - (4169) - - - - - — 4166 - - - -
Disposal of equity instruments at -~ ERAFE AL {2 EHE
FVTOC RATA = = = = - - {457y - - 451 - - - -
At 31 March 2019 iy 57,036 548969 79,368 - 425 840 1949 5180 39,162 12367,157 122,627 2,212,733 868 2,213,601
Profit (loss) for the year E - - - - - - - - - 100,301 - 100301 (1,192 99,109
Change in far valug of equty ~ RATEFAE
instruments at FVTOCI REIAZATESS - - - - - - (696) - - - - (696) - (696)
Exchange difference arising ABENERAELZER
on translation of foreign 8
operations - - - - - - - - (40,055 - - (40,055) (1) (40,056)
Change i far value of debt BATETARG2ENGEL
instruments at FVTOCI BBIAZATERY = = - - - - (448) - - - - (448) - (448)
Release on redemption of debt ~ EEEATEF AL 2
instruments at FVTOC! & BRI ARED - - - - - - (6) = = = = (6) o (6)
Total comprehensive (expense)  EREM2E(FR) A&
income for the year - - - - - - (1,150) - (40,085) 100,301 - 59006 (1,198 57,908
2019 final dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - (45620) (45,629) - (45629)
2019 special dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - (16998) (76,998) - (16,99)
2020 interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - - (15010 - (15970) - (15910
2020 interim special dividend
pald - - - - - - - - - (49621) - (49,621) - (49621)
2020 final divicend proposed - - - - - - - - - (45,629 45629 - - -
2020 special divicend proposed - - - - - - - - - (28518) 28518 - - -
Transfer - - - 16888 - - - - - (16,889) - - - -
At 31 March 2020 e o 57,036 548969 79,388 16,883 425 840 79 5180 (893) 1,300,837 74,147 2,083,611 (325) 2,083,286
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital and special reserves
of those companies which were acquired by the Company pursuant
to a group reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these
acquired subsidiaries represent the credit arising on reduction of their
paid up share capital under the group reorganisation.

Subsequent to NEBIREZRKRHER AR (‘Li Loong”) becoming
a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the Group further
subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in September 2013, for
a cash consideration of New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”) 60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,698,000). The Group’s equity interest in Li
Loong increased from 90% to 96%. This is accounted for as a
deemed acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary and has
been recognised as capital reserve.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit after
taxation reported in their statutory financial regulations applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC (the “PRC GAAP”) to the statutory
reserve.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

HaE -

AEEZFRFEEFEARRAMETRAEE
EAEERBE-NN=FETEEEEMKE
ZRABEBETRAREZ ZRMAKREARZ
R Bl o a2 TP IREB I B R B 2 15 Rl i e
REEESHERZ SRR CHERAMESLE
R ©

ROEBBRESROHABRAB(AEDE=
TE—=FERARABRATZHBARE B
T—=FNA ' NEBE#E— R 6,000,000
BAHOERD  ReREAFHEETHEE D
60,000,000 7T (18 % 7 15,698,000 7T ) ° &
EBR N8 2R H 0% I ZE96% ° It I
ARSI (ER (BB — B A R 2 BEoME
o WEHERBEARE -

RIFHE AR ([ )5 E B
HEDEREOER - PEIKE A RARSENER
AFER BIRSZ b 2 BEE MBS 01 ([ B A F2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-8E —NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr
Operating activities BT
Profit before taxation [ B3 BT v A 127,433 159,975
Adjustments for: ATEHBELFAE :
Depreciation of property, W - HESREREZ
plant and equipment e 33,253 21,618
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEEZTE
assets 132,227 =
Impairment loss, net of reversal BEEE (HEREE)
— property, plant and equipment o/ ERY S 4,123 263
— right-of-use assets —(EREEE 12,479 —
— deposits for acquisition — B - MR R
of property, plant and (P&
equipment 4,000 —
— financial assets under —TEHEEEBBEEREAXT
expected credit loss model ZEMEE 15,461 253
Loss arising from termination of RIFHEEEXZEBE
leases 43 —
Gain on redemption of debt EAFEFAEMEER
instruments at FVTOCI WamzBEEFIE
2 Was (6) —
Net loss on derivative financial ?EQ?TE;#)\TE 5207
instruments at FVTPL ST HZEE
/%EE 2,179 —
Allowance (reversal of allowance) GFERE(BERED)
on inventories 19,005 (355)
Interest expense FMEFX 14,210 1,959
Interest income FEHBA (16,794) (13,762)
Loss on disposal/written off of HE M - e
property, plant and equipment NistE 2 BB 7,431 2,657
Loss on deregistration of a HIEFR—FEWEE AR
subsidiary ol Ei= - 2,256
Fair value loss on financial assets BERFEGFABRZE
at FVTPL MEE A THEEBRE 2,123 890
Share of results of associates JE(GHE & ARl 2 A (5,379) (3,244)
Share of result of a joint venture ElE—R&aE Rz
E 59 (192)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= o~ — 1
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—E-FF=-FH=1+—HULFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease (increase) in rental
deposits

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid in Hong Kong

Income taxes paid in the PRC

Income taxes paid in other
jurisdictions

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of financial assets at
FVTPL

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Acquisition of interests in
associates

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Net settlement of derivative
financial instruments at FVTPL

Proceeds from disposal of financial

assets at FVTPL
Interest received

Proceeds from redemption of debt

instruments at FVTOCI

Net refund of rental deposits

Dividends received from associates

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

LEECEDICKERS

\t\g

)L B2
Tﬂ/i\i R (B )

8 (g R

B 5 N H At e R OB A
(3% h0)

B 5 K E A e BR K

CRL A )38 0

AR ER D

D>

BEBMEEA 2R

BG%C/%SEHZ%MR

RS ZFREH

REMBNEEREZ N2
FriS %%

Fm

EEETES ZIRE 5

KBRS
BERAVESABRRZ
TREE
BEWE K lEE

BEERAFEFARMLE
E s 2 F5 T A
Loidick NI

Wi - s MRIBZ
BEffire
BRATEGFABRZITE
SR T A 4 :/%%E
HERATFEFABRZ
TREEZSHIA

2 WA E
BORATFEAARMS
HW ez &R T A2
(SO
L@ﬂ‘ﬁiﬁ?iﬁ%ﬁ

B e R AR E
HEWE - %z”” Rz

/B EhT

FT iS5 sk38
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2019
—NF
HK$’000
FET
351,847 172,218
8,261 (4,728)
(6,470) 161,050
9,550 (20,027)
(27,945) 5,730
(2,984) (1,304)
332,259 312,939
(15,925) (42,886)
(8,358) —
(1,540) (273)
306,436 269,780
(43,347) (74,048)
(37,538) (25,232)
(14,650) (7,074)
(12,000) —
(3,591) (10,636)
(2,179) —
40,335 58,176
15,392 13,762
3,856 —
2,921 —
2,002 1,676
380 12
EHERTEBERD A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

Net cash outflow from acquisition
of a subsidiary under asset
acquisition

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid
Repurchase of shares
New bank loans raised

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year, represented by
bank balances and cash

Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hnEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
B E W EETE T U E — R M
BRrrzRe Rt #FE
— (4,155)
HERAFEFAEME
A AT R ZFRr
1B FRI8 - 7,969
HERAFEFAEMS
ARz EHTAZAT
133878 - 314
WEFREMECE 58 (48,419) (39,236)
BB EH
BT B (188,218) (196,832)
EEHEaE (121,552) —
EEFITER (57,860) (33,644)
ERTALE (14,210) (1,959)
EAEIE e - (452)
FiERITER - 23,359
REFEMECHESFE (381,840) (209,528)
BERERBEEEZ
OBk A ) 1 N % =8 (123,823) 21,016
FYzRelERREER
1,084,911 1,081,891
EXE s FE&
(24,456) (17,996)
FR 7\ MERREIA
B - WRTTHEHRERS
K& 936,632 1,084,911
—E-EFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

GENERAL

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and acts as an investment holding
company as well as engaged in watch trading. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 39. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
detailed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

—REHR

RARGTEBERAR(TARE )
ARBREGTMA L2 ERRERA
Al R EERATE  YREEBRE
2 AT ZMBRARIZ ZEEBEHRN
MIFE39 - RARBRMNRNEBHAR S
PRBRAB (B AT £ - AT
MM EEREEE R MR AU
BERFRZARER—F -

e BHmRIOAETIAET 2
5 BILMBRRBZINEER

FERMEI &RV B®EER
([EEMBREER ) RISFT
ZIN

REFEBHERZHTEBYBR
HEARBRT A

AEBERAFEEREAUTEE
BRAMAR(EERHTAE))H
o 2 H AT B S0 B o R RS AT A
R

EAMBREEN HE

Amendments to

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

HKAS 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
HKAS 28 Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017
HKFRSs Cycle

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

F16%

EE(EREKE HMEHEREZTHEY
LEREZEY)
- REE0H

EAGIEAE BB BRIEA
195 (BFIK)

BRGHENE RNEEARRAEARZE
285 (B A il

EAMBREER BFRMBREEN-Z-1
(E3TA) FE_T—+FAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(FRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 April 2019, the Group applies the definition of
a lease in accordance with the requirements set
out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHIIEBMBEHREED
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ((EAMBEREED ) RIEF
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS K(E)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 EBMBEHREERE165A

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information has
not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the
Group applied the following practical expedients
to leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the
extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

o elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHIBEEBMERSE Li"EEJJ
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BB KREER |) R1EF
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS K(E)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 EBMBEHREERE165A
B(&)
As a lessee (Continued) fEBRFEA (&)

o applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for
similar class of underlying assets in similar
economic environment. Specifically, discount
rate for certain leases of properties and land
leases in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and properties in Hong Kong was
determined on a portfolio basis; and

° used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension and termination
options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 2.67% to 4.85%.

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHITEEBMBREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([ERUBHREED]) RIEF
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 EBMBEHREERE165A
gl(&)
As a lessee (Continued) ERAMA ()
At
1 April 2019
R_TE—NF
mA—H
HK$’000
FET
Operating lease commitments disclosed R=-ZE—hF=A=+—H
as at 31 March 2019 BRI EHE RS 281,658
Less: Practical expedient — leases B BEREEME — HERY
with lease term ending within 12 MRFEF B HAREET 12 @ A
months from the date of initial N HE
application (1,604)
Recognition exemption — BRHRE — HHHEE
short-term leases (1,429)
278,625

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant  IZMEEIEEE XA KRR 2 AE

incremental borrowing rates AafE 264,876
Add: Extension options reasonably o BEREER TITE 2 EHE

certain to be exercised i 121,199

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 RZE—NFUA—BzHEEEE 386,075

Analysed as aRI=

Current BN ER &R o 135,929

Non-current JEBNERER 7> 250,146

386,075

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEAXTEBERRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERANITEBMBREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IERATKREER ) RIEFT
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 EBMBEHREERE165A
gl(&)
As a lessee (Continued) fERARMBA(E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 FRAEEEN_ZE—NLFWNA—
April 2019 comprises the following: AZERAEERE TIEA
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Note HK$ 000
Bt FET
Right-of-use assets relating to HRERESMBWEERE
operating leases recognised 16 REERACKEHERHA
upon application of HKFRS 16 ZIEREEE 386,075
Adjustments on rental deposits at RN—Z—NFWA—HzH%
1 April 2019 Re 2 AR (a) 3,167
389,242
By class: mEER -
Leased properties HEWE 389,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

2. BRAFMIERYBREER
([ERMBHREER ) RIEF

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS K(4E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) 21 EBMBEHREERE165A

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 April 2019. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at

31 March 2019

&81(#&)
ERABA ()

AEBOUHR T —AFMA—
AZEZRaMBIRRARANER L E
BIEHATHE - TEERXZ

A =
ST EIER -

Carrying
amounts under
HKFRS 16 at

1 April 2019

i

“B-nE
mA-A
REEEMHK
BERUE16R
ZEHE
HK$000

T

HK$'000
TAT

i
—E-NE§
ZA=1-H
FEZ2HR2
BREE
Note HK$'000
Hit FET
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets RREEE -
Property rental deposits NERSES (a) 31,463
Current Assets RYEE
Trade and other receivable BHREMENER () 148,576
Current Liabilties nBaE
Lease liabilities HEERE -
Non-current Liabilities ¥RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE -

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

389,242
(2,692)

(475)

135,929

250,146

389,242
28,771

148,101

135,929

250,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Note:

(@) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group
considered refundable rental deposits paid as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under property rental deposits and other receivables.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
HK$3,167,000 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 March 2020, movements in working
capital have been computed based on opening
consolidated statement of financial position as at
1 April 2019 as disclosed above.

Annual Report 2020
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ptaE -
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SRZB AEEEEAREMR
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% EREASEAEA7SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments o HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concesslons®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definiton of a Business’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Asssts between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Defnition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39and  Interest Rate Benchmark Refom’

HKFRS 7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of above new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition
of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across
all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

FERMEI BBV B®REER

(TEEMBREER ) RISFT

(4 )
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HERRBITR(E)

—E-NFHBREMZEL(HE

) R 1B BB BRI
15T

FES

reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance on
how to select a measurement basis for a particular
asset or liability;

states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of

account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to
the New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still
referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning after 1 April 2020. Other than
specific standards which still refer to the previous
versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the
New Framework on its effective date in determining the
accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under
the accounting standards.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”

The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with early
application permitted.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” (Continued)

e any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The directors of the Company anticipate that this

amendment will have no material impact on the
measurement, presentation and disclosure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that accounted for in accordance with of
HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 “Leases”
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of OCI are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented,
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” respectively; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
longer than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the

acquisition of associates and a joint venture is
described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
a joint venture are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and OCI are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective that
the interest in an associates or a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of entire interest in the
investee with resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in OCI in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture and the Group continues
to use the equity method, the consideration transferred
to acquire the additional interest are added to the
existing carrying amount of the investment without
remeasurement of the previously held interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (2019: “prepaid lease payments”)
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building elements and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method or
reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, or modification date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever the lease term has changed or
there is a change in the assessment of exercise of
a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a
lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

TESTEERE)

HE(Z)

FEFEBABEAZE-NFHA
—H.z257)

RERENFTNERR AR RETER
RFX - KRB ELHRERR
Fx °

FRREHENHERBRRAREE
NREEHY - BEFmEBEAER
SEHER R 2B SOR

o

M BERRBURERAREEER
ERE

REFHHR  NREBERIEDE - %
BRRBALEREEEZREE -
NEEZFEERDLRERARTR
BEEBZBR - HETAZFHR
AlgHerREEEZ I MESRE
EEREsE(INE)2iEE -

ME - HENRBANEREEEZ
AUy [ & B E R R E o = AT RE (A
IR E S8 - AEE SR
AAEEMBREELEM AT WEE
B e

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or a group of cash-generated
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or a group of
cash-generated units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generated units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generated
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rate fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in OCI| and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All the Group’s borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes, are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled shared-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair values of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arises from initial recognition of
goodwill, or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
OCI or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis for
watches. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II\Ii\

B IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCI| and accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other incomes” line
item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lI\Ii\

B IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCI
and accumulated under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. The amounts
that are recognised in profit or loss are the same
as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nvi\

B R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI nor
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss included any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other
income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables,
refundable property rental deposits, debt instruments
at FVTOCI and bank balances) and financial guarantee
contracts, which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nvi\

B R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

3.

TESHEGE)

EWMITEE)

EHEEE)

BB EERYEIEREABE (E)

= B R KR H0

RitEEERRET B VIR ER
ARAIRIZINE - AEBE L RS
MITARZHABMHBRZONE
(2% & @ T ARV R B
HIBEZQNER - E LG
- AEEZERAEREBENTE
KEMEFR  BRBEERNME
BIEBE LB AN S DR A&
SEVRTIEIEE L -

LER  FHEEERRESKE
BN EE R TIIER

s TRTEAENNBIE)XA
MEEFRANER KA
EXRB

s FERRZINBHEIER

mERL PIMERAZ

EEEE FEEENEH

EBREE L

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee

contracts (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets unless the
financial assets are credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the asset revaluation reserve without reducing
the carrying amount of these debt instruments.
Such amount represents the changes in the asset
revaluation reserve in relation to accumulated loss
allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

U the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination on lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group applies judgment to determine the lease
term for lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include renewal option, specifically, the leases relating
to retail shops. The assessment of whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise renewal options
impacts the lease term, which significantly affects
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Determination on lease term of contracts with
renewal options (Continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances including
economic incentives/penalties for exercising or not
exercising the options. Factors considered include:

e contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g. whether
the amount of payments in the optional periods is
below the market rates);

° the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken
by Group; and

° costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g.
relocation costs, costs of identifying another
underlying asset suitable for the Group’s needs).

The directors of the Company concludes the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise renewal options impact
considering all relevant facts and circumstances
including economic incentives for exercising the
options. Details of determination on lease term of
contracts with renewal options are set out in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Net realisable value assessment of watches

Watches are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group reviews
regularly the suitability of the Group’s allowance policy
for watches and carries out review of the watches at
the end of each reporting period. The management of
the Group reviews regularly the suitability of allowance
policy and estimates the amount of allowance for
inventories. The Group identifies slow-moving watches
with reference to the ageing analysis. The net realisable
value of the watches are determined by considering
the salability of watches based on current market
conditions, pricing policies and strategies, as well as
historical/latest available sales information of similar
watches. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already
made may be required. Details of the allowance
(reversal of allowance) for slow-moving watches
charged (credited) during the year and the carrying
amount of watches (net of allowance) as at 31 March
2020 are set out in notes 10 and 22, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lNi\

B R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s revenue represents consideration received
or receivable from sales of watches.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance is analysed based
on the geographical markets of the goods sold.

In the current year, with the growth in the businesses
of the Group in the PRC and Macau, the operating
results of these jurisdictions are separately reported to
the management. Prior year segment information have
been represented to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

Specifically, the Group has four operating segments,
being (a) Hong Kong, (b) the PRC, (c) Macau and
(d) Taiwan, which is also the basis of organisation of
the Group for managing the business operations. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time)

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the point
the customer purchases the goods at the retail shop.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at
the point the customer purchases the goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—E-_EF=-HA=1+—HLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEHER ()

(Continued)
Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point HEERWBERE —BEYERER)
in time) (Continued) (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment IWTARAEEREEDHE D 25
revenue and results by operating segments: Wzt REEDIT -
Segment revenue —
recognised at
a point in time Segment profit (loss)
DR — REGHER D E R (EE)
2020 2019 2020 2019
=i — TS Ll —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 1,198,061 1,448,880 59,212 128,976
The PRC i 944,759 803,856 104,589 38,240
Macau JRFY 204,385 154,009 23,377 12,398
Taiwan =] 5,478 30,439 (27,986) 24
2,352,683 2,437,184 159,192 179,638
Unallocated other &% B2 & U A
income 15,604 13,762
Unallocated RAOMEERE
corporate
expenses (31,511) (28,949)
Unallocated other K% Bid & fib U 25
gains and losses N &8 (20,216) (5,953)
Interest on bank  $RITE R A
loans (956) (1,959)
Share of results of E{GEE N F] 2
associates E 5,379 3,244
Share of result of E{HI—EAZAQ
a joint venture Al H¥E (59) 192
Profit before B 5% A & A
taxation 127,433 159,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before taxation earned by each
segment without allocation of interest on bank loans,
share of results of associates and a joint venture,
unallocated other income, unallocated other gains
and losses and unallocated corporate expenses.
Unallocated corporate expenses include auditor’s
remuneration, directors’ emoluments and operating
expenses of inactive companies. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the
Group for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two

years ended 31 March 2020.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—E-_EF=-HA=1+—HLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point

in time) (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segments.

Hong Kong BB

The PRC =n
Macau B
Taiwan =]
Segment total o EpRRET
Unallocated KoL
Group’s total NEBEER

The segment assets by location of assets are the same

5. WERSHER(E)

HESZR(KERE —

(&)

L/(T%Z!KEI} LEDBEED

//////

Segment assets

iy [ R R SR )

Segment liabilities

DL BE

as by location of markets of the goods sold.
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2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-EH v —E_EF S — NLF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET F#ET FET
977,166 774,804 311,958 69,661
351,958 339,840 51,049 28,747
85,570 50,172 24,431 3,553
24,984 64,298 668 8,533
1,439,678 1,229,114 388,106 110,494
1,073,943 1,179,115 42,229 84,134
2,513,621 2,408,229 430,335 194,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
deferred tax assets, interests in associates,
interest in a joint venture, taxation recoverable,
bank balances and cash and unallocated
corporate assets; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments at FVTPL and bank
loans. Bank loans are classified as unallocated
corporate liabilities because they are managed
centrally by the treasury function of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—E-_EF=-HA=1+—HLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEER(EZ)

(Continued)

Other segment information Hithn BEHR

Amounts included in the measure of segment results or AESHMEEISIHTEERBEZS
segment assets: -

Impairment loss
Additions of Depreciation of Loss on disposal  recognised in Impairment loss
property, plant Additions of property, plant ~ Depreciation of property, plant property, plant recognised in
and equipment right-of-use assets  and equipment  right-of-use assets  and equipment  and equipment* right-of-use assets
HENZ HER RO HER  RERERERIL
Rk ER

AENZ ABRRE REGREEE A% BEIREAE  GRERESR AERICAEER'  HERR

Hong Kong Bk 36,5 19,328 30,487 - 20041 12456 102,528 - 50 258 6913 - 12419 =
The PRC f 7,680 11165 17,248 - 10314 7459 9,561 - - 4 1,150 263 - -
Macau 2R 132 124 - - 2611 849 18,587 = - = - = - =
Talwan qE - = - = 27 800 1,601 - 1510 = - = - =
Segment total pE o) 44174 300612 56,735 - 33253 21064 132,221 - 144 2557 8128 268 12,479 =
Unallocated  RAE - - - - - 54 - - - - - - - -
Group’s total REEEE  M174 30612 56,73 - 8B 21618 132,27 - 14 257 8133 263 12419 =
* The amount includes the impairment loss on deposits for & SHEOREEESWEYE  HERE
acquisition of property, plant and equipment in Hong Kong. 2IEE 2 REEIE -
Annual Report 2020 —E_TFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, deferred tax assets, interests
in associates and interest in a joint venture) by
geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
The PRC an
Macau B P
Taiwan =]

OTHER INCOME

RITHE A
ME e SHA

Interest income from bank
Interest income from rental

deposits
Government subsidies (note) BT B (A7)
Others HAth

Note: Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional
subsidies received for subsidising the Group’s business in the
PRC.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

5. WERDSHER(E)

Hitv o BER ()

REEFMENRE D 2 AEBIERE
BEMBEEREATEFAEMEZE
Wz BRATER - BATFEFTAEAM
PHKRRZ2EBIAR - BELEHEE
I_% HEERAZER ME—REE
NRIZHER) 2 BRI AT -
Carrying amount of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE
2020 2019
i —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
454,511 217,130
48,213 30,310
25,866 7,804
- 2,299
528,590 257,543

6. HfblgA

2020 2019
HK$’OOO HK$’000
FET FET
15,392 13,762
1,402 —
8,311 4,357
3,255 24,219
28,360 42,338

Wit BNEEERERMAREREX
BB 2 EARIEHEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE—_S-_FF-H=1—HIFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7.

Loss on disposal/written off of HE MHEE - R RF
property, plant and equipment 2 B8

Loss from changes in fair value of X AFEFABRZE@ME
financial assets at FVTPL EZNTFEEZEEE

Impairment loss on deposits for ~ WIEME - WRERBREZ
acquisition of property, plant and & & EEERE
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in MYE - S RREER
respect of property, plant and BIEEE
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in MEREEERER
respect of right-of-use assets RIEEE

Loss arising from termination of & IFFAEESL ~ E18
leases

Gain on redemption of debt BAFESAE M2
instruments at FVTOCI ZEREB TR W=

Net loss on derivative financial BEATFEFABRZITES
instruments at FVTPL BT B 7 B8R

Net exchange gains (losses) b 5 s (B518 ) 558
Loss on deregistration of a B —ERE AR
subsidiary BR

Annual Report 2020

Hipm R EE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
(7,431) (2,557)
(2,123) (890)
(4,000) R
(4,123) (263)
(12,479) =
(43) -
6 _
(2,179) —
212 (5,063)
- (2,256)
(32,160) (11,029)

—E-EFEFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FTF=F=1+—AILFE

8.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 8. FEHiE&EEBERXT 2 HEE

CREDIT LOSSES MODEL, NET OF 1B (HIBREEE)
REVERSAL
2020 2019
—EB-EF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Impairment losses under credit ~ FBHEIEEEE T T 5]&1E
losses (reversed) recognised on: (@) R 2 FEEE
— trade receivables — BHEKERR 671 (253)
— other receivables — HMEUWERK (16,132) -
(15,461) (253)
FINANCE COSTS 9. WERAK
2020 2019
—2-%F S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans RITERZHE 956 1,959
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZNE 13,254 —
14,210 1,959
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited REXRITEBERARDA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after (crediting)
charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 117)

Other staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Other staff costs

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expense (including allowance
for slow-moving watches of
HK$19,005,000 (2019: net of
reversal of allowance for slow-
moving watches of HK$355,000))

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Minimum operating lease rentals
in respect of rented premises

Annual Report 2020

10. BREE A= F

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
BREADE M E (R A) bR -
EEZMES (it 11) 27,740 26,583
H M5B 2 BRREFETE
K 6,066 4,789
H AR 8 A 103,066 102,021
BB AL 136,872 133,393
% SRR BN 3,480 3,190
ERABRAI 2 FEKAE
(BIEEHEFREE
19,005,000 7 7T
—T-NF - BIEFEK
& fF % [0 558 355,000 8
7T)) 1,707,356 1,834,224
M MBEREBEIITE
33,253 21,618
ERAEEEZITE
132,227 N/A 73
EHEHEEME s xELENR
=gckn N/ATRER 162,268
—E-ZEFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—E_EF=-HA=1—HALFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 1. ESREEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEERITHREBH 2 NFEEHMNIRIE
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing A LETARREERRUEDIHEEE -
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The ERSHENNZ(ZE—NF : \&)
emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2019: BEEZAZHERT -

eight) directors were as follows:

2019
EhE
Retirement Performance- Retirement  Performance-
Salaries henefits related Salarigs Denefits related
and other scheme incentive and other scheme incentive
Fees henefits  contributions honus Fegs benefits  contributions bonus Total
B4R BAER  RERE g0k EiEH ABEE
we  EEEAW  HEMR  #ERA Be  EBRN  HEER £ERA g
HKS§000 HK§'000 HK§:000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
7AL 73 7L 7AT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
(note) (note)
() ()
Bxecutive diectors 1782
Dr YeungMing B BHERT - 2,120 18 5,766 8,504 - 2123 18 5,325 8,066
Mr. Yeung HimKit,  Bfiee
Dennis - 3,400 425 3,843 7,668 - 344 423 3,550 7,387
Madam Yeung Man &L
Yes, Shirlgy - 197 110 1,921 2,828 - 197 108 1,775 2,680
Mr.LamHngLun,  #EEEE
Alain - 1,967 212 1,021 4,160 - 1,882 239 1775 3,896
. Chol Kwok BRYRE
Yum* - 1817 %2 1,021 4,040 - 1,969 210 1775 4,014
hndependentnon-  BUHHAES
executive directors
Dr.SunPingHsu,  FRERT
Samson 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
DrLiSauHing — Z&EH:
Eddy 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Mr, Cho Man L3 b
Chau, Michag! 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 10,761 1,067 15,372 21,740 540 10,785 1,058 14,200 26,583
Note: The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a Hiat - RIZFA R BB TEAT IR AN BREAT 2 AT 4F
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge. N2 E—BDLLETE °
* Resigned on 1 June 2020 * RZEZZFNA—HETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EEREEZME(E)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were
executive directors of the Company. Details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is also the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Other jurisdictions
Withholding tax on dividend
income from associates

Overprovision in prior years:
Hong Kong
Other jurisdictions

Deferred taxation (credit) charge
(note 28)

12. FRIEHAX

AEARLIA
BB
PRI RS
H Bl A R
BrE AR BWAZTA
Eiaf7)

BEFEBBRRE
BB
H b R ARE R

BRI (F ) X H
(B1:E28)

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2020 2019
s —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
13,598 20,769
15,348 —
3,469 1,600
420 652
32,835 22,721

(166) (357)

(60) (794)

(226) (1,151)
(4,285) 366
28,324 21,936

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FIS8iBAxX (&)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%, after
setting off of tax losses brought forward, if any.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the qualifying
group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years, after setting off of tax losses brought
forward, if any.

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations.

Annual Report 2020

R-_E—NEFE=A=-+—R0  FH
e B BE01ITERBEUERT )(ET
FORBIERNEFIEZR]) - ZIE&H
BRI AFESHMAES - ZIEHEZR
R-ZZBE—-NEFE=A=+N\BEERKAE
EE - TREBAREBRLETIE - BIE
FEHMEL - cERSETEEM
& 2,000,000 7% 7T % F1 4% 8.25% 2 %t
KENFIIE - WHEIR 16.5% 2 T KB
492,000,000 JTIA 3% F| 2 i E -
TEFESHEMAHER s EEER
m A AR A M B IEE B Z (1
BIEBERETERNE16.5%H °

Bl eEREBEEREBZE
2,000,000 7T {4 &t & 3% B & 7l 3%
8.25% Z HEHMMBAFER - Wi
1#16.5% < i F 842,000,000 7% 7T
LA EEETER TR A 2 BB FBHR -

RIB(PBEEERBHRENEREMF
BOE D) R(EERBREE RG]
REBEFEEENTRABER(E)
RAEFEETERBRARZRER
25% °

H b AR < BRI IR IE A BR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FAIBHiRAX(#2)

FARAERX A EBRBEEA B A
fib 2 T8 W 28 5% 2 B B A g A Bk 20

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

™

2020 2019
—BIRF —E-h#F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Profit before taxation KR B4 Bl i A1) 127,433 159,975
Tax at the applicable income tax 1RBEEAFTEHRE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (ZZE—N%F : 16.5%)
AR HE 21,026 26,396
Tax effect of share of results of  EIHEEE N R Z ¥EEZ T
associates B2 (888) (535)
Tax effect of share of result of a JEIE—TEAL AT ZEE
joint venture 2B R 10 (32)
Tax effect of expenses not AOMBAT 2R E
deductible for tax purposes 4,488 1,939
Tax effect of income not taxable HEZRFHWA ZHIETE
for tax purposes (2,540) (872)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERMISEE 2B’
recognised zE 5,300 62
Tax effect of temporary BERNRIR—EEEAT
differences attributable R IR s F) AL 2 By
to undistributed profits of ERIMBHE
associates and a joint venture 1,127 689
Effect of different tax rates of E/\\ @ AERER L 2 BT
subsidiaries operating in other NGRS RN RS
jurisdictions 2%% 3,990 (600)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBERE (226) (1,151)
Utilisation of tax losses previously &)/ 7 AT ARMER 2 55
not recognised B8 (3,871) (3,822)
Income tax at concessionary rate B KIS (165) (165)
Others HA 73 27
Tax expense for the year FRMEZ H 28,324 21,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend

13. DIVIDENDS 13. K E
2020 2019
—B-SE T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution FAEBRRILLIKE :
during the year:
Interim dividend for financial year 1 570,358,224 R (ZZ— A,
ended 31 March 2020 of 2.8 HK F 1 570,358,224 % ) &9
cents (2019: 2.8 HK cents) per share HE BZE-T-T&=f
on 570,358,224 (2019: 570,358,224 =t+—HIFBREERHRS
shares K 2.8
(ZZ—NF : 2.878l) 15,970 15,970
Interim special dividend for financial 1#%570,358,224 R (ZZ— 11
year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.7 HK F 1 570,358,224 %) Bk 19
cents (2019: 8.7 HK cents) per share HE BE-T-T&=f
on 570,358,224 (2019: 570,358,224 =+t BUEFBEEF PR
shares % B8R 8.7
(ZZ—NE : 8.781) 49,621 49,621
Final dividend for financial year ended ¥ 570,358,224k (ZE— N\
31 March 2019 of 8.0 HK cents £ : 570,610, 2241&)1&1“
(2018: 8.0 HK cent) per share on HEZHE-T-hE= H
570,358,224 (2018: 570,610,224) =f- Hﬁﬁffﬁkirfﬁﬁﬁﬁ
shares B 8.0
(ZZ—\F :8.0/1l) 45,629 45,649
Special dividend for financial year 570,358,224 (ZF— N\
ended 31 March 2019 of 13.5 % : 570,610 224Hx)ﬁxfn
HK cents (2018: 15.0 HK cents) HEZHE-T-hE=f
per share on 570,358,224 (2018: = EIJtﬁMWF%%JHxE
570,610,224) shares R 13.5% 4
(ZZ—N\F : 15.081l) 76,998 85,592
188,218 196,832
Dividends proposed after year end (note): F&& R 2R E (M) -
Proposed final dividend for financial 1£570,358,224 R (= F—H,
year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.0 HK & : 570,358,204 1% ) 13
cents (2019: 8.0 HK cents) per share FECHE_Z-ZF=A
on 570,358,224 (2019: 570,358,224 =t BUIBFEEERAD
shares I 2= 8.0 81
(ZZ—NF : 8.0/8) 45,629 45,629
Proposed special dividend for financial 1 570,358,224k (—F— A,
year ended 31 March 2020 of 5.0 F 1 570,358, 224ﬂx>ﬂx1ﬁ
HK cents (2019: 13.5 HK cents) HESHE-E-TE=
per share on 570,358,224 (2019: =+—-BUEMBEE %EM%%IJ
570,358,224) shares % B &/ 5.0 81
(ZZ—N%F : 13.57%1) 28,518 76,998
74,147 122,627

and a special dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020
have been proposed by the directors of the Company and are
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

Annual Report 2020

Mt M2

HER®%E - AAREFHRREEC
ZoRF=A=1+—HIFEZRHR
SRFRIRE - WAFKRERRERERREA
FRE LHE -

—E-TFEHR

171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. ERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per KARHEARGERERNREER
share attributable to owners of the Company is based FITHIRBE A TEBUERTE -

on the following data:

2020 2019
s —F-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TETT

Earnings P

Earnings for the purposes of basic st & G E R R #EEF] 2
and diluted earnings per share BR(RNATHEE AEG
(profit for the year attributable to & g3z F))

owners of the Company) 100,301 138,099
2019
—ET-NF
000
TR
Number of shares R4 & E
Weighted average number of STEEREAREERT
ordinary shares for the purpose 3@ & it 15 21
of basic and diluted earnings
per share 570,358 570,501
The diluted earnings per share for both years has not WMEFE 2 BREERFWEBTEAR
included the effect from the Company’s share options NRIBREZFE T BEREBRE
because the exercise prices of the share options are ZIIEBERAARRMD 2 EETE

higher than the average market price of the shares of FTEL ©
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y13 - HBRERE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE iR -
THREF nEEE  RERRG RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET AT FET
COST A
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EMA—-H 187,225 160,093 100,363 3,564 451,245
Exchange adjustment B N AR (1,498) (3,919) (1,786) - (7,203)
Additions HE - 23,567 1,567 1,278 26,412
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WE-EHEAF
(note 30) (#230) 4,200 - - - 4,200
Disposals/written off e /M - (14,969) (5,437) (597) (20,997)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 189,927 164,778 94,707 4,245 453,657
Exchange adjustment R (1,588) (3,686) (1,522) - (6,796)
Additions HE - 39,266 4,599 309 44,174
Disposals/written off e/ M - (33,767) (8,247) - (42,014)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FE=A=+-H 188,339 166,591 89,537 4,554 449,021
DEPRECIATION AND WERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EmA-A 40,889 126,110 70,937 2,493 240,429
Exchange adjustment 5 A% (819) (3,618) (1,232) - (5,669)
Provided for the year rEERE 4,079 11,336 5,967 236 21,618
Impairment loss recognised ~ RNEZEAZRESE
in profit or loss = 263 = = 263
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /i EE
written off - (14,011) (3,926) (491) (18,428)
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A=+-H 44,149 120,080 71,746 2,238 238,213
Exchange adjustment B 5 AR (973) (3,291) (1,139) - (5,399)
Provided for the year REERE 4,085 23,717 5,028 423 33,253
Impairment loss recognised  RNERERZ REEE
in profit or loss - 4123 - - 4123
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /s
written off - (27,942) (6,261) - (34,203)
At 31 March 2020 RZZZFRE=A=1-H 47,261 116,687 69,378 2,661 235,987
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FE=A=+-H 141,078 49,904 20,159 1,893 213,034
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1-H 145,778 44,698 22,961 2,007 216,444
Annual Report 2020 —E_TFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using straight-line
method or reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over 20 years for those located
and buildings in the PRC or 50 years for
those located in Hong Kong
Leasehold 20% — 33"/;%
improvement

Furniture, fixtures 10 — 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and
equipment because the allocation between the land
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably.

The carrying value of property WMEZREERR

comprises:

Properties located in: IR THE 2 W5 -
Hong Kong BB
PRC H ]

During the year, as certain retail shops in Hong
Kong and the PRC incurred operating losses. The
management of the Group concluded there was an
indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant retalil
shops. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of
these retail shops, each represents an individual CGU,
to which the asset belongs when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

15. ¥)% - B/ RKRE#E)

FERBRERELRBRBIEATS
FHRRMED R - R NREEB 2
DPNE

HELHE URATHRABEB20F
gF AR EBR 50 F

HEWERE 20% — 33'/:%

R EER 10 — 20%
B
YRE 20%

ERURBELRTEZEZETEAEE
TH 2 LB D BB T E D TRER 52
wE D - WETBRBEELHTIEA
ME - W LRE -

2020 2019
—E_EE —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FE T

133,057 136,008
8,021 9,770
141,078 145,778

FR - ARBEBRTBEETEERE
EEEBR AKREEEERRAHE
ZEENBERRBEREREEE
TR BB SR 3 5t A) 4R 0] & BEAE 1 TR
BFHE - SEXEBETZHEA KD
TR AREGFEEMBTER
(ZERERRSELEM) A Y E

THE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, management
of the Group determined that the recoverable
amount of certain CGUs is lower than the respective
carrying amount. The relevant retail shops are not
expected to resume profitable position before the
end of the relevant leases. As a result, an impairment
loss of HK$4,123,000 and HK$12,479,000 (2019:
HK$263,000 and nil) has been recognised in full against
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 1 April 2019

Carrying amount FREE

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying amount REE

Annual Report 2020

15. Y13 - BB KRB )

ReELBMM DS B REE

REEAEEE -

BB HER  ASEEEERETS
TREEEBMHITKRESEERS
BMEEE -EETEEEBETER
HERAOERAIRERZR - Bt - 2
MYE - BELRRBEREREEED
IR (B 2 S FE SR R (B /85 18 4,123,000
& T % 12,479,000 T(=Z T — 1
& : 263,000 T M E) o

16. EREEE

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’000
FET

R-ZZB-NAFHMA—H

389,242

R-ZB-BF=A=+—H

287,779

T FF R

[
A
H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EAEEE#®)

176

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Expenses related to leases
Expenses relating to leases with lease
terms end within 12 months of the date

BE-E-_EF=-A=+—HILEE

2020
—E-EHF

HK$°000
FET

HECHBEHR
EFH AR VIR IE B BB ISR E &
BIFE 165 E BT 12 8 A A4S

of initial application of HKFRS 16 RZEEBBZRX 1,788
Expenses relating to short-term leases HREBHEERE R 6,960
Variable lease payments not included in HERESABBTEISAZTEMA

the measurement of lease liabilities =K N 3,861
Depreciation for the year FAWE 132,227
144,836

Additions to right-of-use assets i AREE EL N 56,735
Termination of lease WILHE (7,456)
Modification of lease BENEE (4,731)
Total cash outflow for leases HMERL MR 147,772

During the year ended 31 March 2019, expenses
related to leases amounted to HK$162,268,000 were
paid as the minimum operating lease rentals in respect
of rented premises, which were accounted for under
HKAS 17.

For both years, the Group leases various retail shops
and offices for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 8 years but may
have extension options as described below. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REBEZE_E—NF=ZA=1+—HLHF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EAEEE @)
During the year, the Group entered into new lease RAFE  NEEHREABEMEET
agreements for the use of leased properties for 5 NEHHEwE  RPAT c REER
years. On the lease commencement, the Group R AEERREREEENKEH
recognised right-of-use asset and related lease liability & & 1556,369,000,8 7T * B IF
of HK$56,369,000, which constitutes non-cash BER5 o
transactions.
In addition to the short-term leases for a retail shops in KAREBERBEZE_ZE_ZFTF=FH
the PRC which are regularly entered into by the Group =T+t HBIEFERFEZTEETHE]
with related expenses of approximately HK$3,660,000 YZEHEEN  AEBREFEA
during the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group JR 7B & #8787 X £9 3,660,000 % 7T
incurred expenses related to extended lease term for 2 fEmESHEBERMEAEER
months upon the expiry of the original lease during the 3,300,000 7T °
year amounting to HK$3,300,000.
Variable lease payments A E R
Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease EECHEEBEATHERN I
payments or contain variable lease payment that are AE2EENREDIERETES
based on certain percentage of sales. The payment ttiﬁ’%%&i) NBIGERRARERER
terms are common in retail shops in Hong Kong and BRPREETEENBEER -
the PRC where Group operates.
For leases of retail shops that contain both fixed lease NERECTHENREBEERE
payments and variable lease payment that are based EREM2% 5 13% 2 1] “Tﬂf;fﬁmz
on 2% to 13% sales, the amount of fixed and variable TEEHE BHE-_ZT-_ZF=H4
lease payments paid/payable to relevant lessors for the =+—BLEFE BN BN TIEH
year ended 31 March 2020 are as below: HEAZEERAIEHEEN RSB
T
Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments
EFEE & E 13K AR SREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Retail shops without AEBEENRZ
variable lease g%ﬁé
payments 3 16,462 = 16,462
Retail shops with REAEHENKRZ
variable lease TEE
payments 4 6,612 3,861 10,473
7 23,074 3,861 26,935
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment
terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by shops
with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected
to continue to represent a similar proportion of shops
sales in future years.

Extension options

The Group has extension options in three of the leases
for retail shops. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date or
date of initial application whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. The directors of the
Company concluded the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise all leases with renewal options considering all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic
incentives for exercising the options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,
upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the
control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 March
2020, there is no such triggering event.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

16. EAEEE®)

TEBAENRE)

ERITENRER BEBMBEER
HERRS ZEHMEEZHEAA
e - AHRRKZF AJEHEDH
XBEERERNEREER AL
& o

mERER

AEERZEEZ=EHETBSE
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B1T(E - MEALEANBITE -

AEERHEERGE BXBEERE
BRIt ehaEsERiTREHEE
- ZR2—IHEEERRR(E
RITEEERZEELFH) AR
FEERAE  AEESEEESTR
BHEEE -

BEAN + FEEEE B K E kAR AL
BEANZBREEERELLE A%
EEHIEREABREITHEERR
BEgE Bz -_FTF=-A=+—H
WEFE - BIEmBEAE R EG -

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr e B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

16.

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Restriction on assets

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$307,436,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$287,779,000 as at 31 March 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities
are set out in notes 26 and 38.

Details of the impairment assessment on right-of-use
assets are set out in note 15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in unlisted
associates DN
Exchange adjustments ME 5, B
Share of post-acquisition profits,

net of dividends received %2

Included in the interests of investments are goodwill
of HK$25,734,000 (2019: HK$15,342,000) arising on
acquisition of associates.

Annual Report 2020

RIFELEMBERRZRE

EEWRBREN - HNREW

16. FHEEE#)

BEZRHE

AN B T E=R=+—
H 2 #8782 FA# & &= 287,779,000 /%
TUHER A & & {5307,436,000/8 7T °
HEHZWER T (ERXEE - HEEH
EEEHBEEAAFRE) KR mE
% MARBEE & & E T ] INME KR A
TEIEHR G -

HEAGBZHERBHBLSMEFBHL
FfizE 26 [ 38 ©

& AR EREN G ZFBEIHE
e

17. ABE DR 2 Em

2020 2019
—F-FF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
53,192 30,201
(558) (834)
11,347 7,970
63,981 37,337

KRERZPRIEEWERES AR mE
7B 25,734,000 T(ZE— AN
£ 15,342,000 7T) °

“E_ZEER
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 March 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

Place of Proportion
Name of incorporation of ownership
associate and operation interest
kL L R gy
BERNT AR EEME Bz fl
2019
—E-NF
NEEERRHDBER AT Taiwan 60% 40%
(Th%rl) =)
KEEERDBEM AR Taiwan 60% 40%
(T 1) 4
mATEERR M AR AR Taiwan 60% 40%
(353 ) al

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

EEE)

=

=

AR -_ZTFK—
—HZFBWT -

Principal
activity

Proportion of
voting power held
BEZ

RERELA TEXH
2019

—E-NF

60%

40% Watch trading

F A
60%

40% Watch trading

F AL
60%

40% Watch trading

WIEBEXR 2B ERBZAER

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The Group’s share of profit and 7N B (5% 7 &2
total comprehensive income 2HN 2 5,379 3,244
Aggregate carrying amount of AEEGWZFHERTZ
the Group’s interests in these w2 GETRREE
associates 52,990 37,337

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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17.

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 22 January 2020, the Group acquired additional
(“Interest”) 20% interest over 71#7, k¥ and 25#,
together with a call option exercisable by the seller
with aggregate cash consideration of HK$12,000,000.
Pursuant to the agreement, the seller has the right
to buy back the Interest, exercisable between 22
January 2022 to 21 February 2022 at exercise price of
HK$12,000,000 plus interests of 4% per annum. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group recognised
the call option derivative at fair value of HK$10,991,000
and consideration of the additional interest of
HK$22,991,000, respectively. The Group holds 60%
of the issued share capital in each of the associate
after the acquisitions are completed. However, under
the shareholders’ agreement, other shareholders
has the right to appoint three out of five directors to
the board of that associates and since the critical
business decision of that associates are determined
by the simple majority in the board, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group does not have
control over of those associates and they are therefore
continued to be classified as associates of the Group.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Cost of investment in an unlisted

joint venture REKA
Exchange adjustments ME H, I8 B
Share of post-acquisition profit  FEAE U BE & % A

Annual Report 2020

17. (&

\—FFLTMAEZERRA

NE 2R (E)

RZE_EF—A=-+=H ' K&
B LA 4238 € X {8 12,000,000 7% 7T I
BEE - KET R FTEE N 20% HE 2=
([t D ERR TEATEARE
HifE - IREBEHE BEAAURZE =
A F e == SR T S
“t+—HMERZER  (TEEA
12,000,000 B TTINFFE4% - X 5H
TR & AEBIZRATFESD RBIERR
BE HAE 574 T B 10,991,000 7t &
4 SN F B.22,991,0008 7T » A&
RIEE TR ERSESBEARIE &
TR 60% AT - IRIFRE Bk
HRREEZEZEBHE R RA
EEPHN=F MEARZZIHZEDQA
LAREBRARBESSHEKREHY
RE  ARAESRAANEE I A

ERAZ IR &mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
RAEE B E N T

18. {5 —ME i
2019
—heE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
21,793 21,793
(2,655) (948)
5,101 5,160
24,239 26,005
—E-_SEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN A JO
(Continued)

INT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 March 2020

and 2019 are as follows:

Name of joint
venture

BEAFEH

BREXERER AR
(“Huimei”) (&% 1)

Proportion of

Place of ownership

incorporation interest

and operation 2020 & 2019

FRERE

R LB

& i AR 3L K —EBEEFR

EIE i B —E-hF

The PRC 40%
a3

Note: The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of Huimei. Huimei

is jointed controlled by
equity owner by virtue

the Group and the other significant
of contractual arrangements among

equity owners. Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture

of the Group.

Included in the interest of investments is goodwill
of HK$3,749,000 (2019: HK$4,013,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31 March

2012.

Information of the
individually material

The Group’s share of (loss)

profit and total compr
(expense) income

Carrying amount of the

interest in the joint venture

Oriental Watch

joint venture that is not

2H(FX) W B

ehensive

AEBEEZRERAILZ
2 FREE

Group’s

Holdings Limited

18. th—RE &

RER B (B8 ) &

ERNF 2|

KEBSLRARN_SE_EFR_-T

—NFZA=+T—HBZFHBOT :

Proportion
of voting
power held
2020 & 2019
BEZ
RERELL B
—E-BER
—E-NF

Principal activity

EFEREK

40%
(note)

(KHtet)

Watch trading
FHRKH

Hiat AEBEFAEEXEHRRAZ40% ° ExE
ExkEREE A 2RI 26 DR
REAEBES —BERREEA ALRZE
H o Fit - EXDBEAAEEZAZR
A\l e

RERRPREEEARBE-_T—=F
A=+ HULEFERKBEEME
A7 3,749,000 T (ZE— AN
£ :4,013,000/87T) °

UHBEREAZEE AR ZEHR

2020 2019
—E-EH —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
(59) 192

24,239 26,005
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19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BAFEFAEMEE KR Z
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AT E
INCOME
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed investments EmRE
Equity securities listed in REB LT BRARS
Hong Kong 36 41
Unlisted investments FELTIRE 3,175 3,866
3,211 3,907
Note: The directors of the Company have elected to designate these B BRARRESHE  BRZSRER
investments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising BaRBzAFEZSHEBEAEE
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit ARREENMBEAEZSERERERAR
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of BRAZRBAG  BUHBEEREEZE
holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising AT AIRATE AR M2 EEE -

their performance in the long run.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

20 DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 20. BRAFEFAHEMEEZEKEZ
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE B ITEAE
INCOME
2020 2019
—BIRF —_E-h#F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Listed investments EmKE
Debt securities listed in FHMENF1.80% =
overseas with fixed interests 4.25% (ZZF—NF :
ranging from 1.80% to 4.25% 1.56% £ 4.25%) &
(2019: 1.56% to 4.25%) per NFRZZ_FFX
annum and maturity dates ARNBEZZ-=%
ranging from 6 June 2020 to ANATHRBA(ZZE—N
15 June 2023 (2019: 16 May F :;_7¢£H
2020 to 26 October 2020) TRBEZZT-TF
+A=+"8H)FHZ
BN EMER B S 10,926 3,683
Debt securities listed in Hong Eﬂ“f?l?ﬁﬁ%z 50% K&
Kong with fixed interests —T-NAF+—H
2.50% per annum and _—H\ElilJ,HﬂZ%/%
maturity date on EmERE
28 November 2019 - 1,568
Unlisted investments ELEMIERE
Debt securities issued in FRENTF2.00% =
overseas with fixed interests 5.30% (ZZE—NF :
ranging from 2.00% to 5.30% 2.63%) RN FR_FE
(2019: 2.63%) per annum —EFRANBEC=
and maturity date from 6 T-RFENATEH
May 2020 to 15 August 2025 (Z=2—h&F: Z2=
(2019: 14 January 2020) TFE-A+IBE)RH
28N T ERE 5 6,240 1,569
17,166 6,820
Analysed as: DA -
Current portion BIERER 9> 7,486 1,812
Non-current portion FEBNERER > 9,680 5,008
17,166 6,820
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RERTEBERAQA
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20 DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

21.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

At 31 March 2020, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values, which have been determined with
reference to the quoted bid prices available and quoted
market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions.

The amount of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI

denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the Group is set out below:

United State Dollars (“US$”) Zma(lEmxT])

Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments
at FVTOCI are set out in note 38.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. RAFEFARMEARRSE 2
BRIA®E

R-ZE-_ZEF=A=+—H EQAF
Bt AEfh2Em s BB TAETYIR
NEEANER - 2 ER[ B2 kK
EERALL(ASREE)MRE 2
FrmiZERmMET

AEEZEAHEFARMMEERGEZ
B TAZSBEA N XAEHALEED
REEM AN E¥ETHE ¢

2020 2019
—EC-EE —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

17,166 6,820

BRRAFESARMEE RS ZE
BT EBERN G ZFBHNHIFESS

21. AR EFAERZZEREE

2020 2019
—B-BHF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed investments &
Equity securities listed in REE LT 2 BRAE S
Hong Kong 4,230 6,112
Equity securities listed in BN ET 2 RN FE H
overseas 11,641 8,870
15,871 14,982
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FTF=F=1+—AILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s financial asset at FVTPL
denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the Group is set out below:

us$ Xt

22. INVENTORIES

Watches F ik
Accessories and parts Bie 14 & EB 4

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 EIERR
Less: Allowance for credit losses & - {= B E B BE

Property rental and other deposits ¥4 R HMIZ S

PRC value added tax (“VAT”) Al Y [B] z = B 3 (E L
recoverable ([EEH])

Advances to suppliers A L FE R B 3K

Earnest money paid BEftEEe

Other receivables H b Uk BR X

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

21. RAFVEHF ARG ZERMEE

(%)

UAREENREEE AN EBAEZ
AEBBRAFEFABRZEREE
ZERWT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
11,641 8,870
22. &

2020 2019
—EC_EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
780,556 803,095
18,137 20,559
798,693 823,654

23. E5 K EtEWIERR

2020 2019
S5 -z s
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FHBT
83,835 89,885
(2,959) (3,839)
80,876 86,046
17,566 22,997
2,528 2,452
6,790 16,797

- 16,467

4,995 3,817
112,755 148,676
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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(Continued)

Rental deposits paid were adjusted upon the initial
application of HKFRS 16. Details of the adjustments
are set out in note 2.

As at 1 April 2018, trade receivables from contract with
customers amounted to HK$105,130,000.

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not
more than 30 days for its retails sales in department
store and wholesales customers. Sales made to retail
customers are mainly made on a cash basis. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period:

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

BESREMEWERTE)

B S ERSRYIAE A ETEM SR
LREB|FEI1E KD THE - B
FIBERHIE2 o

R-ZE—N\FWA—H kBEFA
#7285 EWER KA 105,130,000 /8
7T|:,O

REEWEFTEQARTEHE RiLE
EFEFETTHBBIAEZ—MEEHR
R-TERFPHEURSET - UT
BESRWER(NBREERBERE)
REBRBRIZBELH ZRE DT

2020 2019
—EoEHF —FT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Age BR R
0 to 30 days 0zZ30H 61,106 IGSRESS
31 to 60 days 31£260H 19,770 9,843
61 to 90 days 61Z290H - 868
80,876 86,046

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$19,770,000 (2019: HK$10,711,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. These
balances are not considered as in default because
historical experience indicated that such receivables
could be recoverable from the relevant debtors. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and
other receivables are stated in note 38.
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RZE_ZEF=ZRA=+—H ' ~&£E
2B SRBEREHBIEEHEARR
#{619,770,000 8 T(ZF— "L.F :
10,711,0008 7T ) < FEULBR 3K + M #%
ZRWEREFNEFRBE B - Z5H%
BIWEAELY  WIARBELR
BNz SRR B REES AW
B o REEWEZEEBRIFHEM
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

25.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at prevailing market
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.03% (2019: 0.01% to

1.14%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Payroll and welfare payables

Commission payables

Renovation work payables

PRC VAT and other taxes
payables

Advertising fee payables

Property rental fee payables

Other payables

Accrued expenses

B 5 RS iR

e L& KB
M

JRE A~ BB BT T2 BR AR
FEAS o BB B AR e
H fth B 78
BNESE
ENMERS

H & 5 AR X
et EH

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

24.

25.

RITEHRRRE

RITEHR LA PEASBEMFRES
RREIEA A=A A T I IRRIT
MHFEHMENT0.01EE2.03E(=
T—NF 001EE114E)FTBEZ
RERIRITERK ©

BESREMENRIAREN
=Rt

5 RHEMEMNERR
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FAET
26,168 50,907
15,648 20,559
25,886 25,996
1,430 3,468
1,230 5,970
613 1,007
1,916 1,408
10,883 6,521
3,000 3,190
86,774 119,026
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
Trade and other payables (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Age IR R

0 to 60 days 0Z60H

61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days Q0 HM k£

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities on sales of HEFHZ - AHEE
watches

During the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue
recognised in current year of HK$7,476,000 (2019:
HK$8,780,000) was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year.

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of watches, giving rise to contract liabilities until

revenue is recognised.

As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$8,780,000.
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25.

ESRAEMENERRAREHN
=G

EZRAEMEMRR(E)

AT RE S EMNEIN2HRARIRE
ZEMZY 2 BRI -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

25,088 43,498

52 1,227

1,028 6,182

26,168 50,907
BHAER

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

4,366 7,476

BE_T_THF=-A=FT—HILHF
B RAFERRZWE 7,476,000
BL(ZZE— ¥ : 8,780,000/8 7T )
EEAREYIZEHNBEEHRT -

EHABEEHEBER AR &
EERNBEEEERWESILE

R-F-N\FOA—B AHAEESR
8,780,000/ 87T

“E_ZEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HERE
2020
—E-EF
HK$’000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEEAE -
Within one year —FR 101,663
Within a period of more than one year but —E&ERERX
not more than two years 70,777
Within a period of more than two years MERERFA
but not more than five years 90,675
Within a period of more than five years HBARF 44,321
307,436
Less: Amount due for settlement with JEOmEIBETATUR 12 A AR Ef
12 months shown under current HEHE 2 IR
liabilities (101,663)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JE;REN & & T FiR 12 18 A & 2| H
shown under non-current liabilities “E 2 8 205,773
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

27. BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable
as follows (based on the
scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements):
Within one year
Within a period of more than
one year but not exceeding
two years

Within a period of more than
two years but not exceeding
five years

Comprising:

Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount that contains a
repayment on demand
clause (shown under current
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than

one year

Total amount shown under
current liabilities

Analysed as:
Secured
Unsecured

Annual Report 2020

27.

RITERARA T HIME

BE (RRERIHH
Pz BEERE)

—%FR
—FREMFEA

MERERFA

B

M—FREIH 2 KA
GlRRBaRE)
BEREREERGRZ
FEGIBRBEAE)
MEZEFA LA T HA
&g -
—FNA
Bie—F

SR mE BB 2 IR

XV

B A
EE A

BITER
2020 2019
—EC-EF —ET-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,000 57,700
1,667 4,000
= 1,667
5,667 63,367
= 53,700
4,000 4,000
1,667 5,667
. 5,667 63,367
5,667 9,667
— 53,700
5,667 63,367
—E-EFEFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

27. BANK LOANS (Continued)

At 31 March 2020, the Group pledged certain leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$84,340,000 (2019: HK$86,714,000) to banks to
secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group.

All bank loans carrying interest at variable rates, mainly
comprising:

Loans carrying interest at: 1= AR F &
— Bank’s cost of funding

(quoted by bank) plus 1.50%

27.

FTRZER
— RITRERCA (BRIR
1T ) I F| =

per annum 1.50 &
— Hong Kong Interbank Offered — B RITRIZESR LN
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.75% FHE1.75E

per annum
— Taipei Interbank Offered
Rate (“TAIBOR”) plus 1.50%

divided by 0.946 per annum 0.946

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn short-term borrowing facilities:

Variable rates AN
Expiring within one year R —F RN EIH

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

— RERTREFREM
FHIZE1.50 ERR A

BITER®E)

RZEZZTF=A=+—08 ' ~5H
B R 17E 48 BR [ {8 & 84,340,000
BT (ZZE— N4 : 86,714,000/87T)
ZETHELIHRIETF  MEALXSE
EERRITERRE 2K -

TERBREBF X
S

JEE e

Effective interest rate

per annum
BRER =R
2020 2019
—¥=%F —F-NEF
1.94% 1.94%
- 3.38%
— 2.30%

2019

—NE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FETT

424,109 409,860
RAEXKITEEERDA
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=F=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial assets, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset.

Deferred tax assets BT EE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEEFE

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

28. EIERI1E

VAN 7 R VR BA 765 BR 3R 2 IR AE B IR 45 Bk
DT

REINGEMBEERME » HTE
EHRREERAEE THEH -

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
5,153 24
(2,864) (2,001)

LTFARAFERUEFERRY &
TEERE (AR BERREY

Undistributable

provision profits of

of trade  associates and
receivable  a joint venture Others Total

EZRUERR BENTR

ZBHEE -MeELAFL
ERRE Fa AR Eft CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT AT

(note)
(Hit)

At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\EEA-A (1,664) 56 (1,608)
Exchange adjustment L - (3) (3)
Reversal of withholding tax payment %[ 2 (1T #17 352 - 352
Charge to profit o oss REZMR (689) (29) (718)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H (2,001) 24 (1,977)
Exchange adjustment fE 5 R - (1) (19)
Reversal of withholding tax payment %[ 2 17815 420 - 420
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ~ RB#EMB(ZA) (1,127) 4,234 3,865
At 31 March 2020 R-B-F£-A=1-H (2,708) 4,257 2,289

Note: The amounts mainly represent temporary differences arising
from impairment on property, plant and equipment, and right-
of-use assets.
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 March 2020, the Group had unutilised tax losses
of HK$123,239,000 (2019: HK$114,578,000) available
to set off against future assessable profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit stream. Included in unutilised tax losses at
31 March 2019 are losses of HK$23,460,000 (2020: nil)
that will expire in the period from 2020 to 2024 (2020:
nil). Other losses of the Group at 31 March 2019 and
2020 may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$168,748,000
(2019: HK$92,555,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

IEIERIE ()

R -_FTF=A=+—H ~&£E
BREABBEE 123,239,000/ T
—Z— N4 : 144,578,00078 7T ) A]
IR RERT R A o HRARBETE
AR A M R - R L% R E
BAREEERERECHREEE - K=
E-NEF=A=1+—HZABAHB
EEBREENR T _ZFE T
F(ZZEZZF - ®)HFEERmCEE
23,460,000 BTL(Z -5 F : &) o
AEBR-_ZFE-—NERZT_FTF=
A=+ —HZzHEMEETERBE
=

BREFRGEMSHEZ B ZFF
NE—A—Bi# fEWEB QR
BIRA BRI M 2 KB AN
TER - RS E A 4E G & | F
BB AR RE T ELEREE
168,748,000 T(= & — N F:
92,555,000 70 ) < B fEl - B E R =
B KA RERA A AR E - B f
RERE MR ERRE R ERETIREE
TRIEHME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R4
Number
of shares Amount
RBEE X
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREME0.10B T EEK
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZZE—\FMA—H =&
31 March 2020 —“hWE=ZA=+-HEK
—E-EF=-HA=1+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 April 2018 R=ZE-N\EMA—A 570,610,224 57,061
Share repurchased and cancelled (note) ~ RR{HEEE R a5 (Hat) (252,000) (25)
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 R=-Z-A&=A=+—-HBR
“2-TF=RA=+—H 570,358,224 57,036

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
repurchased a total of 252,000 issued ordinary shares on
25 October 2018 at prices ranging from HK$1.78 per share
to HK$1.80 per share in the market for a consideration of
HK$452,000. The ordinary shares were cancelled upon
repurchase.
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Bt REBEE_Z—hAhF=ZA=+—HBHLHF
B ARRR=-ZFE—N\EFE+A=-+HH
BN TE8R1.78BTE2EBK1.808 T2
BRI M5 _EAR(E 452,000% T iE M
B A252 000 E BT ERK - 25
LB A B EIEE 8 o

[
A
|l

ZEFR

195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY UNDER 30.
ASSET ACQUISITION

On 18 September 2018, the Group acquired entire
equity interest in Fully Field Development Limited (“Fully
Field”) at a consideration of HK$4,186,000. Fully Field
holds 3 signage spaces in Hong Kong. The directors
of the Company were of the opinion that acquisition
of Fully Field did not constitute business combinations
as defined in HKFRS 3, therefore, the acquisition had
been accounted for as asset acquisition. Details of
acquisition were summarised follows:

EEWETNTHRBE—RBHREAR

RZZFE—NFNLA+N\H  AEBK
BEaERRARAT(HE]) 25K
¥ KR{E/5A4,186,00078 T ° mER
BEERE=ZAZE - ARREEFTRAE
Wit B o BB X TSR K B B B T R 5 22 R
FIRFMATZEREH At %
WEBEEAALBEEWE - ZWES
HFBEMAnT

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of N ERACEERE R
acquisition
Total
wmy
HK$’000
FET
Net assets of Fully Field acquired: BB HEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - S REE 4,200
Bank balances RITEEER 31
Other payables E b FETRR R (45)
Net assets BEFE 4,186
Cash consideration paid EfRERE 4,186
Bank balances acquired B U B IRTT A 54 (31)

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a BERBETHRE-—HBWNBARZ

subsidiary under asset acquisition WE L FEE
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BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 31. U AEBRZNEF

XX 5

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (a) —EZS=FERETS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date on 3 November 20083.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company,
the trustee of the eligible persons or a company
beneficially owned by the eligible persons. The
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. No eligible persons shall be granted an
option in any 12-month period for such number
of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the last day of
such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 31. URDARBZARKRZ (&)
(Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

On 6 April 2011, 32,300,000 share options were
granted and on 29 August 2011, and 23,000,000
share options were granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. The options may be exercised
by the grantees at any time during the option
period up to the termination of employment. All
share options vested immediately at the date of
grant. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on these dates are HK$44,855,000
and HK$48,698,000, respectively. The closing
prices immediately before the date of grant were
HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively.

Details of specific categories of options are as
follows:

“EE-FBRRETEE)

) BMOMREERRLEARNA
%% BEHIMERR
EBRAHRZ R GRS
E .

RZE——FM@MANA IR
BT -FBERESE
32,300,000 17 i I iE E % 1 -
mR=—ZE—F\A=+hIA8 "
23,000,00017 & IR BEE R T o
AR AR R A R R 1T
BRE  BEERIEERAL AT
EEBREAREERRKSS -
Rz % BER L 2 B 2 G5
NF{E D Rl A 44,855,000 7T
X 48,698,000 7T » B K H
EHAZWKMED R A3.95%
oM 4.38 87T ©

FrE BB RI Z BT ¢

Original Adjusted

Number of exercise exercise

share options price price

Date of grant granted Exercisable period per share per share

2’ RESR RARBR

®EBEH BRERE ATEHE THEE TEE

6 April 2011 32,300,000 6 April 2011 to HK$4.13 HK$3.44

5 April 2021 (note i)

—ZET——FWmAKRH “E——FHARAE 413% T 38.44 BT

—E-—FMARA (Bizti)

29 August 2011 283,000,000 29 August 2011 to HK$4.80 N/A
28 August 2021

—ZE——F)\H “T——FN\HAZThBE 4.807% 7T TEA

—+N1H T —FN\A=Z+NAH
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BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 31.

(Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose movements of the
Company’s share options granted under the
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors,
employees and consultants during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2020:

Share options granted on 6 April 2011

URDABER ZNRRZ (&)

(@) —ZET=FBERETEE)

TREBEDHIRBE—T—NF
MZBZBF=A=1T—HILLF
EREZ BEELBERMBAR
B TT=FBREFSERLY
P NI LT

RE-FE——FEANARL ZME
K

Number
of shares

Number under option

of shares Forfeited outstanding at

under option during the 31 March

Categories of outstanding year ended 2019 and

participants at 1 April 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2020

R=ZB-N%F

=R=1-H

R-B-N\#F REZE gt St 225

mA—H —E-NE =Z=A=t-—H

RTEERE =A=t—H RITHEBERE

SEEER ZRHBHAE EEFERK ZBRGBHAE
Directors of the ARRES

Company 11,520,000 — 11,520,000

Other employees Hitifg 8 14,400,000 — 14,400,000

Consultants (note i) BB (H7:Eii) 5,640,000 (3,000,000) 2,640,000

Total BEt 31,560,000 (3,000,000) 28,560,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted on 29 August 2011

Categories of participants

2 EEF5

Other employees HEmES
Consultants (note ii) BER(Kazii)
Total KBET

Notes:

(i) The number of shares under the outstanding options and

the exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus
issue of shares in July 2011 on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held.

(if) The share options were granted to consultants for
services rendered in exploring investment opportunities
for the Group.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised
by the participants at any time during the option
exercisable period and notwithstanding that the
2003 Share Option Scheme had expired. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, 3,000,000 (2020:
nil) options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
were forfeited.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

\

31. LR AER ZARRZ @)

(a)

“EE-FBRRETEE)

R-E——FNNA=+NHEH
ZHERE

Number of
shares under
option
outstanding at
1 April 2018,
31 March 2019
and

31 March 2020
R=F—N\EF
mA—H
—E-hE
=ZA=+—H
R=F—%F
=A=+—H
RITHEBRE
BRZ2BRHAEAE

18,000,000
5,000,000

23,000,000

HiEE -

() KRIEBERESRZBEODHER
ﬁﬁfﬁaf%:;ﬁffﬁtﬁﬁ
Fi A T RCE B AR R — BT E
&z AR AAT AR AE I -

(i) %EBREDETER ERHE
RASEERBRER S ARRER
2 B -

T -FERESEIERS
—=F+—A-HEmm - %ﬁ:
T =FEREECECER -
2L )R] A BB AR A 7T {5 HA TS
BERITHEERE - REBEEZZT
—hWE=ZA=1+—"BULFE"
3,000,000 (Z BB -84 : &)
BRECRE-_ST-FHERE
FTEDRUL -

RAXRTEEBRLQF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=H=+—HIFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 31. UBRAEBRZNARRZ (&)
(Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (b) —E—=FERETE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13 August 2013, a new share option scheme was
adopted with effect on 3 November 2013 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (ii) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose
service to the Group or business with the Group
contributes or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group. The purpose
of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to attract
and retain quality personnel and other persons
to provide incentive to them to contribute to the
business and operation of the Group. The total
number of shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report is 57,061,022 shares, representing
about 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on such date. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(@)

(b)

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in

the nominal value of one share;

the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on

the date of grant; and

the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant.

force until 2 November 20283.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its effective
date on 3 November 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2020.

No share-based payment expense was recognised for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 in relation to

share options granted by the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

32.

33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group and the other
shareholders issued financial guarantees jointly to
banks in respect of banking facilities granted to
associates. The amount disclosed represents the
aggregate amount of such contingent liabilities for
which the Group and the other shareholders as investor
are liable that could be required to be paid if the
guarantees were called upon in entirety amounted to
New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”) 150,000,000 and equivalent
to HK$38,775,000 (2019: NT$150,000,000 and
equivalent to HK$38,624,000), which was fully utilised
by these associates at 31 March 2020. The fair value
of the financial guarantee contracts at the grant date is
not significant.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33.
At 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF(H
Over five years fiEep ks

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain shops and office premises.
Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 8
years. Some group entities are required to pay lease
charges based on a fixed percentage of net sales.
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HEEEBE RNHEER2HRERE
REAJEATEIMz2HABERE
& ®([% & % ])150,000,000 7T
(%5 38,775,000 T ) (ZE—Ah,
& A% 150,000,0007T © HER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

34.

35.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EREIE
2020 2019
—E-EF —F-hF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FiEr FHET
Capital expenditure in respect MEFTRERRE S
of the acquisition of property, B mERARE
plant and equipment WM - #as &k
contracted for but not provided R AR X
in the consolidated financial
statements 8,378 8,780

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the other is
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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(Continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 to an individual, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$7,133,000 (2019: HK$5,847,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
in respect of the current accounting period.
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

36. MEFIMELE 2RBEZHR

TRFEARERERIMELEZE
EEY BRATCKIIRSE - @
BEMELZBBERREREDK
IARRBEEREFENAEE KA
ReRBXRTIRABERDELZ
BEnE -

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

Lease Interest Bank Dividend
liabilities payable loans payable Total
HEEE EANE ®RTEX  EMRE @t

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT T TFIET TAT /BT

At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FMA—A - — 75,320 - 75,320
Financing cash flows BERERE

(note) (H1iz) - (1,959) (10,285)  (196,832)  (209,076)
Dividends declared EERRE - - - 196,832 196,832

206

Interest accrued FEATFIE - 1,959 — — 1,959
Exchange adjustment RS - - (1,668) - (1,668)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=H
=+—H - 63,367 - 63,367
Effect of adoption of RMEERBERSE
new standard of BB 165 L8|
HKFRS 16 (note 2.1) LR E(ME2.1) 386,075 - - 386,075
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—-NEFMA—H 386,075 63,367 — 449,442
Financing cash flows REBRERE
(note) (Hzt) (134,806) (956) (57,860)  (188,218)  (381,840)
Dividends declared EERKE - - 188,218 188,218
Interest accrued FEZE A2 13,254 956 — — 14,210
New leases entered or  EiVHEHZHHEE
modified 51,638 — — 51,638
Termination of leases MEKRIE (7,413) — - (7,413)
Exchange adjustment RS (1,312) 160 = (1,152)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_TF=H
=+—H 307,436 5,667 — 313,103

Note: The cash flows represent dividends paid, repayment of bank
loans, new bank loan raised, repayments of lease liabilities and

interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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37.

38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchange from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 27 and lease
liabilities in note 26, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves including
retained profits. The directors of the Company review
the capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

37.

38.

Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised BREHKNAFTEZ S/
cost BE

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

BRAFEAAEMEER

Wz EB TR
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAVEGFABRZ
CREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEFARMEE
Wz AT A
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost B SH P AR

Derivative financial instruments

at FVTPL PTESMIA
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£@MIA
ST EER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instruments at FVTOCI,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables,
refundable rental deposits, bank balances, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, derivative financial
instruments at FVTPL and bank loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and impairment assessment
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
either US$, HK$, NT$ and Renminbi.

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities except exposed
to foreign currency risk in relation to US$ arising from
debt instruments at FVTOCI.

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the reporting date is
as follows:

Us$ ETT

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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38. T H#)
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as US$ denominated monetary
assets are held by group entities having HK$ as their
functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The management conducts periodical review of
exposure and requirements of various currencies,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise. No sensitivity analysis
was prepared since the directors consider the amount
involved is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to debt securities with fixed coupon interest
and lease liabilities (details of which are set out in notes
20 and 26). The management monitors interest rate
exposure when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank
balances (details of which are set out in notes 27 and
24). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits is
insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-term.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of bank’s cost of
funding HIBOR and TAIBOR arising from the Group’s
bank loans.

For bank loans, debt instruments at FVTOCI and bank
deposits, no sensitive analysis is performed as the
exposure to interest rates for these items is considered
as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI and
derivative financial instruments at FVTPL at the end of
the reporting period exposed the Group to other price
risk.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate of 10% is applied in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity securities has been
10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower:

° post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$1,325,000 (2019: increase/
decrease by HK$1,251,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL;
and

o asset revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$321,000 (2019: increase/decrease by
HK$391,000) as a result of the changes in fair
values of equity instruments at FVTOCI.

For debt instruments at FVTOCI| and derivative
financial instruments at FVTPL, no sensitive analysis
is performed as the exposure is considered as
insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity analysis
is for illustrative purpose only and is unrepresentative
of the inherent equity price risk facing by the Group as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, bank balances, refundable rental and other
deposits and other receivables and debt instruments
at FVTOCI. Other than those financial assets whose
carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group arising from the amount of contingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantees provided by the
Group is disclosed in note 32. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets
and financial guarantee contracts.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

ABEEFR

Low risk

{5 e

Watch list

Doubtful

it

Loss

E#&

Write-off

i 4

Description
it

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due
amounts

HFEImEDRR
tEfa1 8 B IA

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full

EBEARERIHABREETE
BHER

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed internally
or external resources
AER SN A RIRRPT G5 BB R EE

E\BR B e R AR B E 2

There is evidence indicating the asset is

credit-impaired

BEBBETAREAECRLGEERE

BREAY &

CERE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

ARBERE
AEET

EARABREHM KRR
REBBRAKEEBRE
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Trade receivables
e W K18

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

FENEHESEE -
FEERE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
FEDRBMEEESE -
FEERE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

RENEHEEESE -
FEERE
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
FENEHEEEE —
FERE

Amount is written off

MEB B

[
A

Other financial
assets/other items
HthemEE/
HEH

12m ECL

12EARBEEER
12m ECL
12EABRREESE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

REDEHEEESE -
FEERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

FENEHESEESE -
EERE

Amount is written off
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €RIT A#)

214

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposure of

the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee REYEEHZ2EERR HXBRTE
contracts, which are subject to ECL assessment: B EEEE ¢
Internal 12m or
External credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12ERHE
HIEEFR NIEETR HRAGEES BEEE
2019 2019
ZENE Ik
Notes HK$'000
Bt 747
Debt instruments at BROTETARMRE
FvTocl hEZEBIR
Investments in listed debts ~ FHEREE 20  Baa2 - Aa2  Baa3 - Al N/A 12m ECL 10,926 5,251
(Note ¢) (Wite) &R 1214@%&5
FEFE
Ivestments in unlisted S EWEHRE 20 Caa2 - Aat A3 N/A 12m ECL 6,240 1,569
debts TER  120R%S
REBR
Financial assets at REERRTEL
amortised cost tREE
Bank balances (Note ) R{TEB(HiZ0) 2 B2-Aal  Baad - Af NIA 12m ECL 935,803 1,080,094
MER  (not credit-
impaired)
12[@ABE
EEER
(FEEHE)
Refundable rental and REEE RS 2 N/A N/A (Note a) 12m ECL 43,740 72115
other deposits and WRE RS TER i3l (fiza)  12(AR%H
other receivables FEBE
Credit-im&air\ed 16,467 -
FERE
Trade receivables ERRUER 2 N/A N/A (Note b)  Lifetime ECL 83,569 80,885
TER il (b)) (ot credit
impaired)
=
FEER
(HEEHE)
Credit-impai(ed 266 -
58
Other item HitsER
Financial quarantee HBERAD 3 N/A N/A (Note ¢) 12m ECL 38,775 38,624
contracts TER 0Nlii (Hitc) 121&2?@
FEKE
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(a) In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management
of the Group makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on the historical
default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. For the individual balances of HK$16,467,000
comprising the earnest money paid, after considering the
deteriorating financial position of the counter party, the
management of the Group considered that there is a significant
increase in credit risk on that balance since the initial
recognition. The balance is considered as credit-impaired and
fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020. Except
for that earnest money paid, the management of the Group
has considered the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with other general payments, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s remaining balance of other
receivables is insignificant.

(b) Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 20% (2019:
18%) and 49% (2019: 44%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and assesses
the expected losses on trade receivables individually.

Management assessed the expected losses on trade
receivables individually.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-looking
information is used by the management of the Group to assess
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date.
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e B S R R MY T

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

approach.
As at 1 April 2018 RZZE—-\FHMA—H
Changes due to financial instruments EegT AR - —/\FMHA—
recognised as at 1 April 2018: H#ERMmES
— Impairment losses recognised —BEHRREERE
— Impairment losses reversal — R EE IR R
Exchange adjustment e X R
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A=+—H
Changes due to financial instruments HE&F T ER -2 — 4
recognised as at 1 April 2019: /A — BRI
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBREEERE
— Impairment losses reversed —FRREBERD
during the year
New financial assets originated or EEASNBENCREE
purchased
Exchange adjustment e H 35
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZEF=A=+—H

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

216 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

ﬁﬁ!ﬂIE/Z‘m

BRRAREEERRBRE)

EEERR B EF (A
Mz« (#)
©)  (#)

TREATREGEDZCHERBEZER
R FERRHEEERCES -

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

FENEE FEURS
FEER FEESR

(EEERE) (EERE) okl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
3,808 = 3,808
3,839 = 3,839
(3,586) = (3,586)
(222) = (222)
3,839 = 3,839
(266) 266 =
(3,364) — (3,364)
2,693 = 2,693
(209) — (209)
2,693 266 2,959

fid 5 B BN BT AR B B B 1S R &
AYEERKE A (EBASENS
BUWERF) - MIAKEMEE SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—S-_EF=-HA=1—HLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount that the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contracts was approximately
HK$38,775,000 (2019: HK$38,624,000) as at 31 March
2020. At the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount equal
to 12m ECL. The management of the Group considers the
probability of default is low and accordingly, loss allowance
was considered as insignificant.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on bank balances.
The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers
the gross principal assessment and the related contractual
interests of the debt instruments. As at 31 March 2020, the
gross principal amount of these debt instruments amounted
to HK$17,380,000 (2019: HK$6,814,000). The Group’'s
debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise instruments
that have a low risk of default and the counterparties have
a strong capacity to repay (e.g. financial instruments that
are of investment grade or issuer with good credit history
and capacity to repay), and accordingly, loss allowance was
considered as insignificant.
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38. €mIT A#)

BRRREEERRBEE)

EE R R EFG (&)

Hiet - (&)
© HUBERAOME @ FEAEELSE

BR-_ZE_TFE=A=1+—HBREKS
KFTERE R = £ 88405 38,775,000 %
7T(=F — S 4 : 38,624,000 7T ) °
REFRBK - RABEECETRERT
1?5 REVEERAOZEERRKRAEY

TARERR DA SR £ K MR3E 0 - Bt - A%
B2 H IS ERE K 2 BRBEIZE
ER12E AR EEEEE - A58
%@mmz%umr& &+ L8 5
BHWR AW RE

AEBERBTEBREHEIEERRE
RER - BRRSHF I RERREES
ARRBEIEREAESEETR R
17 RITEBRZEERRER -

REMEEBEBEFETNS  AKEEE
BERTAZASHBEREHEHER -

R_ZE-_TF=A=+—H %ZE&E
T B2 #% 517,380,000 (==
*ﬂ$‘6814000%’§7_5) AEEZIE
ATFEFAEMEAKSEZEFLIAES
BHRBREERRSEFHERENRLZ
TE(BIwEERR T A  ES
RIFEERBRERENZEITA)

BB IR B AR ST R
“E_REER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2020, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities
of HK$424,109,000 (2019: HK$409,860,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. The amounts included below for variable
interest rate bank loans are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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38. &I A&

BRRAREEERRBRE)

B E LR R

RNEERBDECERE  ~EESE
RLEREERBRIERAZRE RS
RIREEB KT  UAEAEELER
HECHBERSRERDIFE -
ERERERRITEEZERBER
I FEORE <7 B R

REBEFRBRRITEEEAREERDE
SRB-R-_BE-_ZTEFE=F=+—
H - AEBEHFHEAZRE AR
SR 17 B 2 B & 424,109,000 st (=
T— 14 : 409,860,000/87C) °

TRALAEEITESRA BRI
EEFRHZHBTAOHR - TRIMK
RAKEAERANRKZKRFANZ
ABREBABRSTRERE - K5l
A DmiRITE BTN 28
EHE  EEREREEERZET
EXEAKRERE - HtIETES
MEBEZIHBENRHEERBE
e TRBEMNERAEGHEERE
i F B R B RN 2 HRIRETE <
MEMEFTER - BATHES 27
MERBITERCRITSRE -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. eI T A(#)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERKREEEERBER(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEBEL R (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB & K E R e 5 7%

Over 1year  Over 2 years

Weighted ~ On demand but not but not Total
average effective or less than more than more than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
il 33 REXY 184E 2ENL FERRE

Lk I B2 ELE SEAL REAE RAE
HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO
1A% 1A% A% 1A% 1A% 1A%

2020 it 13
Non-derivative financial FTEERER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REHENER NIA MER 60,056 - - - 60,056 60,056
Bank loans LT 1.94% 5,667 - - - 5,667 5,667
Lease liabillties HEAE 3.99% 110,967 76,888 100,284 48,070 336,209 307,436
176,690 76,388 100,284 48,070 401932 373,159
Financia quarantee contracts  ETEERAH NIA TR 38,775 - - - 38,775 -
2019 E-1F
Non-derivative financial FTAERER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REHENER NIA AER 80,307 - - - 89,307 89,307
Bank loans LT 2.46% 63,704 - - - 63,704 63,367
163,011 - - - 163,011 152,674
Financial quarantee contracts  ETEERAH NIA TR 38,624 - - - 38,624 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE—F_EF=-HA=1—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2020, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$5,667,000 (2019: HK$9,667,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that the bank loans will be
repaid in 1.5 years (2019: 2.5 years) after the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
period set out in the loan agreement. At that time,
the aggregate undiscounted principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$5,817,000 (2019:
HK$9,901,000).

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

38. &I A&

BEREEREREE(E)

mEBELEE(E)

RBED RFERE R (&)

A LM BERE DT AZSER/R
RZBFHEREREERFAZER
BLZHEABNE2BERBAZESS
B KBERAKRZEHY  ~EER

ETKT%E?ESEH&EFTZEHi
B o AT ULAFT RIRERERE T E
RUBRRER X ZHFHTERRE
E?@%ﬁﬁiﬁf‘fﬂﬁkz_ﬁz—f%'liﬁﬁ

Aﬁzzzj:féf}&f' RZRITEFRR
it B 2 » ﬁ%ﬂ\ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%iid\
5A1£|EJZE—IEXW » = = F
=A=+—8" MTE%E%I%-\;&{'A
?ﬁZ%Emi‘fﬂZfﬁﬁﬁfﬁJﬁéi@%ﬁ
/5,667,000 (= & — h F:
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. £ T H#)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined.

Financial assets

SHEE

Financial liabilities

HAR

i

(i)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI — listed
investments, equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
RATEALME ARG RATA
- IRE - REE LW 2 BAES

Equity instruments at FVTOCI —
unlisted investments
BATES AR 2 ARG RALA
- kETRE

Debt instruments at FVTOCI — listed
debt securities in overseas
BATEG AR 2 AN BHIE
- R Lz BHES

Debt instruments at FVTOCI — listed
debt securities in Hong Kong
BATEFAL M2 ARG ERTIA
- NER L BHES

Annual Report 2020
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178

36

3,175

10,926

2019

“E-hE
HK$'000
AT

3,860

3,683

1,568

Fair value
hierarchy

AYERR

Level 1

S
=

Level 2

¥
o
=y

Level 1

S
=

BERMEERU AT EH B2 A EE
SRAEZDTE

REBWKR - AEELDSBEEN
NFERE - TRIEHBBNOAEE
HEEBEEZ A FENER

Valuation techniques and key inputs

fHEADRIERAHE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RETEHELEAE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note)

ALz s kBRI TSR ()

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RRMEHEHEAE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

L PAYN

“E_ZEER
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €RIT A#)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy
REE AV AVERE
2020 2019
Z22%F ek agiks
HK$'000 HK$ 000
7 AT
(v)  Debt instruments at FVTOCI — 6,240 1,569 Level 2
unlisted debt securities
BATE AR 2 ARG BHIE £28
- fEhkEER
(vi)  Financial assets at FVTPL — listed 15,871 14,982 Level 1

investments, equity securities listed in

Hong Kong and overseas

RATETABRZEREE - LTR E18
£ REEREN LMz RAES

Financial liabilities

SHAR
() Derivative financial instruments at 10,991 — Level 3
FVTPL

SFHF
%
=

RATEAREZfTEERIA

29292 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

BEEMEENAFEFEZEAEE
EMEEZNFEGE)

Valuation techniques and key inputs

fhEADRIEBAHE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note)

AR SRERRILMAREHZ)

Quoted bid prices in an active market

Rl VAN

Black-Scholes option pricing model significant unobservable
input: Volatility of 28% Dividend yield at 4.49%

W05 -SREMECERAEANTBRE AR « K8 26%
RE%4.49%
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. €mIT A#)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

The only financial liability subsequently measured at
fair value on Level 3 fair value measurement represents
buy back option granted to the seller of the associates
in relation to the acquisition of additional 20% interest
over H#T, ;kH and #5 ¥ (see note 17). No gain or loss
for the current year relating to this buy back option has
been recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capitallregistered
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital
AL/
HRARER B /meny ERARARES/ HRRCHES
2019
ENE
La Suisse Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
HK$1,000 HKS1,000
WEERAR it ZER1000E7 EER100%T
Oriental Watch (Ching) Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
Limited HK$1,000 HKS1,000
ROKA(E)ERAT it BER100ET  EERI00AT
Oriental Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
HK$2,000 HKS$1,000
RARAERAT Bk RER2000ER  EERI00ET
Oriental Watch (Macau) Company ~ Macau Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
Limited MOP$25,000 }OP§25,000
R BRAR 1y EERS00AAT  EERL00EFT
Gathay Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
HK$2,000 HKS1,000
BRATRROT &t EER2000%n  EARI00ET
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share  Ordinary share HKS1
HKS1
ERRRAT {3 LR 18T LA
Unex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
HKS? HKS?2
FUERERA it LaRoEn Bk

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

39. TEMBEAA

RZE_EFER_ZT—ILE=AH
=+—8 ' ARFREEME LTS
BERAT)ZFBOT :

Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/

registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

KAAFHERARAEE/AREA L 1558
Directly Indirectly
Bl Bk

100 100 - — Watch tracing
Fhlg

- - 100 100 Watch trading and
investment holding
FRBHRRRAR

100 100 - - Watch trading
THEH

5 5 5 50 Waich tracing
ThEH

100 100 - - Watch trading
Fhg

- - 100 100 Ivestment holding

REAR
- - 100 100 Property holding

Az
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. FEMBE AT E)
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capitallregistered Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
i/
if PEEL B/Eey ERARARES/ HRRCEES AAAFRERARAEE/EREL LN EE
Directly Indirectly
B B
2019 2019
ENE ENE
%
Fully Figld Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - — Property holding
HKS8 HKS8
e &k EaRekn ERReET L
LERBROEERAARDT  The PRO fotg Registered and Regisered and - - 100 100 Waich trading
(Shanghai Oriental Watch paid-up capital paid-up capital
Intenational Trading Co., Lid ) S5200,000 /38200000
LEABXNERERRRAT  EMD) RAGE {-0) NG FHE
000057 W0000ETT
RAK(RE) R AERAT The PRC fnote Registered and Regisered and - - 100 100 Waich trading
(Origntal Watch (Ching) paid-up capital paid-up capital
Trading Co., Ltd) US§54,000,000 1/3854,000,000
Rh&f(4E ) BRRRAT HEk) GLGE -0 i G s
54,000000%7 54 000000£7
Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Hiet : ZERARRPBAINEBEERE 2R

wholly foreign-owned enterprise. ipAvA

k=
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. TEMB AR (&)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

ETREK EFREBUMR

Watch trading Hong Kong
FERH BB

Taiwan
Investment holding Hong Kong
KRE R iy

The PRC

R
Inactive Hong Kong
Tmex E

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Principal place of business

FREJNEEABRIBEFELEEE
BAEBEEZARAMBRR - BEFR
& MESI BB AR 2 5FE - 8
SEWNEHBHILE

& BT 2 B B AR B A (R AR B PRI AR
BEEMAREEERES

REBHAR  XRFEHAEEM
WIEBRZHMHB AT o KEHZ
EMBRARIREE FERAER
& o ZEMBARZ EEEBH M4
T

Number of subsidiaries

MEBARZE
2020 2019
—ECEF ik
1 _
1 1
2 1
6 6
1 1
7 7
8 8
17 16
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the directors of

the Company. The remuneration of directors during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits %2 HAtE 7
Post-employment benefits BEER 1218 A

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Annual Report 2020

40. EREALRS

FEEEBASZWE

EETHEFMEEeEEREAR

BEMSBERET

2020 2019

—EC-EF —ET-h%E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

21,673 25,525

1,067 1,058

22,740 26,583
BEEFHAaFMEEeLEE/AR

BRTISBREETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-—E_FF=F=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

41. KR T 2R &R

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WS MRS 355 444
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 619,279 619,279
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAVESAREMEE
Wes 2 BRART A 3,175 3,866
622,809 623,589
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEULHIE A T B 447,658 456,361
Bank balances and cash RITHERR IR 267 225
447,925 456,586
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H A FER RN 10,470 16,008
Amounts due to subsidiaries NS NGIE S 100,587 96,993
111,057 113,001
Net current assets RBEEFE 336,868 343,585
Net assets EEFE 959,677 967,174
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital A& A 57,036 57,036
Reserves (note (a)) s (K (@) 902,641 910,138
Total equity R AREE 959,677 967,174

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

4. ZRF 2 BT R E)

Note: Biaz -
(@) Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and () AARBEREAEERBEEEZE
the prior years are as follows: NS
Share Capital Asset
Share option redemption Contributed  revaluation Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits reserve Total
RiRE BRERE ETROREE HABR BEERREE RE&R RERHE aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FAT AT AT FAT AT FAT
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\%
mA-H 549,396 83,554 425 122,183 2,467 6,990 131,241 896,256
Profit for the year E3npail - - - - - 211,689 - 211,689
Change in fair value of ~ KAFEFALL
equity instruments at 2 ERE 2 RA
fair value through other ~ TAZATEEE
comprehensive income - - - - (548) - - (548)
Total comprehensive ER2ENR
income (expense) for (B @&
the year - - - - (548) 211,689 - 211,14
2018 final dividend paid B R%E-E—\E
KERe — = - L - - @564  (45,649)
2018 special dividend ~ BRE-E—\E
paid BHRE = - - - - - (85,592) (85,592)
2019 interim dividend ~~ BRE=F-15F
paid SHRE S - - - - (15.970) - (15,970)
2019 interim special BRE-S-NE
dividend paid RIS - - - = - (49,621) - (49,621)
2019 final dividend RRE-2-NE
proposed ﬂﬁﬂx - - - - - (45,629) 45,629 =
2019 special dvidend ~ HEE-F-NF
proposed MIJHX g - - - - - (76,998) 76,998 -
Share repurchased and BB R R
cancelled (427) - - - - - - (427)
Forfeiture of share options R4 fkfE = (4,166) = = = 4,166 = =
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE
=R=t-H 548,969 79,388 425 122,183 1,919 34,627 22,627 910,138
Profit for the year ERR ﬂ - - - - - 181,411 = 181,411
Change in fair valug of ~ EATFEFALL
equity instruments at 2 EMEZ
fair value through other ~ AT AZ
comprehensive income  ATFEEE - - - - (690) - = (690)
Total comprehensive ER2ENE
income (expense) for (A% g8
the year - - - - (690) 181,411 - 180721
2019 final dividend paid  BRE-E-NF
ﬁiﬁ;ﬁﬂxé - - - - - - (45,629) (45,629)
2019 special dividend ~ EE%E-F-HE
paid M\Jﬁxé - - - - - - (76998 (76,999
2020 interim dividend paid 2R -E-F%
1 - - - - - {18970 - (15970
2020 interim special BRE-S-TF
dividend paid HH TEI ng - - - - - (49,621) = (49,621)
2020 final dividend REE-Z-%
proposed RERE - - - - - (45,629) 45,629 =
2020 special dividend ~ HEE-E-%
proposed MIJHX% - - - - - (28,518) 28,518 =
At 31 March 2020 WZE=%
=R Eﬂ‘ A 548,969 79,388 425 122,183 1,229 76,300 74,147 902,641
Annual Report 2020 —E_TFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE_E_FF=FH=+—HIFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. XA R Z Bk RFT &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (Continued) Bt (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) ()
The contributed surplus arose as a result of the difference ABBREARNATIRNB AT EETEE
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries MEEN— AN =FRIEEESAHAAEK
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s BEZERBATIMBETZAATIRGZ
shares which were issued to acquire those subsidiaries under LHECTEME Y EEmMEL -

the group reorganisation in 1993.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBRE

RESULTS

Revenue

Profit (loss) before
taxation

Income tax
expense

Profit (loss) for the
year

Attributable to:
Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling

interests

Profit (loss) for the
year

BR B¢ 1k 7
(E8)
PRIS B X

F A (E18)

AN AR

ZN/NGIE 2SN

IR

F R (E18)

Annual Report 2020

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+t—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE—RF ZE—+tF ZT-N\F ZTNF ==
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FrET FrET FET F#ET
(Note 1) (Note 2)

(Baz1) (Ktat2)

3,031,752 3,142,295 2,891,692 2,437,184 2,352,683
(12,717) 25,449 164,691 159,975 127,433
(3,042) (9,352) (26,0006) (21,936) (28,324)
(15,759) 16,097 138,685 138,039 99,109
(15,528) 16,383 138,763 138,099 100,301
(231) (286) (78) (60) (1,192)
(15,759) 16,097 138,685 138,039 99,109

—E_FFEER



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

At 31 March
W=A=+—~H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

ZERF ZE—tF ZE)N\F ZT-NF == ;
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET F#ET
(Note 1) (Note 2)

(Htat 1) (Hiaz2)

ASSETS AND EEREE
LIABILITIES

Total assets BELE 2,533,582 2,354,738 2,539,937 2,408,229 2,513,621
Total liabilities BERE (376,010)  (207,724)  (222,985) (194,628)  (430,335)

2,157,672 2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601 2,083,286

Equity attributable ZARAGHEAE A
to owners of the  FE{h#EzE

Company 2,156,518 2,146,006 2,315,977 2,212,733 2,083,611
Non-controlling eI
interests 1,054 1,008 975 868 (325)

2,157,572 2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601 2,083,286

Notes: HiaE

(1) On 1 April 2018, the Group had applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. 1) R=E—N\FmLA—A ZKEIFE%E}%HM‘%
Accordingly, certain information for the years ended 31 March 2016, RERERNE O BB ISMELERE 155
2017 and 2018 which was prepared under HKAS 39 and HKAS 18 Hit - &EFREEES +4§5'J%397ﬁ&§%
may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March 2019 and S EAFISKEHNBEE_ZT— X F - =
2020. E—+FRZZTE-NF=ZA=T—HILEFEN

BRAREERBEE T -NFR-2Z_TF
=A=t—BIEFELR -

(2)  On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16. Accordingly, 2 RZZE-—NFHA—B AKEERBAHY
certain information for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2017, BHREERFE165E c Al - ETREEZES
2018 and 2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17 may not be AERFEI7TREFNINEE_T—XRF - =%
comparable to the year ended 31 March 2020. —tF  ZT-NEFERZT— ﬂﬁ_ﬁ =+—

HIFFENEHREEIREE T - 2F=
A=+—HIEFELR -
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